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City Coliege Norwich
1. Reference and Administrative Details

Key Management Peraonnel
Keay management personnel are defined 85 membars of the Execullve Team and were
reprasanted by the folkowing in 2017418;

« Corrienne Peaggood, Principal and CEQ; Accounting Officer

i Jerry White, Deputy Princlpal

& Helen Richardson-Hulme Direclor of Student Servicas

» Steve Therpe. Assistant Principal Diversification {rasignad 240802018}
» Julla Buckland, Assistant Principal Teaching, Learning and Asszessment
+ Elaine Dale, Aesistant Principal Experdance of Work

Board of Governors

A full list of Governors bs given on page 16 of thess finencial lataments.

Clare Johnson, Clerk 1o the Corporstion has been in pesition sinee 2 August 201610 present.
Clare bagan matarnity laave on 177 July 2018 and an spproprata matemity cover solutien has
been put in place.

Frinclpal and Registered Dffice: [pewich Road, Morwich, Norfalk,

Professional advisers

+ Financial statements and regularity suditor:
KPMGLLP
Draganfly Housa
2 Gilders Way
Marwich
NR3 1LB

= [Internal auditor:
Zorutton Bland
Fitzroy House
Cronwen Street
Ipswich
Suffolk
1P 3G

= Banker:
Linwds
16 Genfleman's Walk
Morwich, Morfalk
MRZ1LZ

o Solicitor
hdills & Floeve LLP
1 5t James Court
Whilafriars
hMorwich
WR3 1R
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2. Operating and Financial Review

Nature, Dbjectives and Stratagias

Tha governing bady present thelr annual report ogethar with the financial statemants and tha
auditor s repart far City College Monwich for the year ended 31 July 2018,

Legal status

The Corparation was established under the Furlher and Higher Education Act 1892 for the
murpose of conducting Momwich City College of Further and Highear Education {'City College
Maorwich™, The Callege is an exempt charity for the purposes of tha Charities Act 2011,

Mizslon
Tha Caollege's mission as approved by its membare is: Challenging minds, Inspiring success

Challenging Minds — this is what education is all about; it reinforcas our agpirations arcund
stretching students and apprénlices; it's about teaching students te think differently. it's about
anrichment and extracumeular acliviies to0o] It needs to e interprated as how we enable
vacational, technical and professional skills Lo be accessed alsq, not simply academic and
coardinaling cognitive activities and physical aclivities is a critical component af what we ana really
gaad at.

Inspiring Success — succass for all our skidents and apprentices is our ultimate goal; we want
to inspire them to achisve, whoraver possible excesding their gaals: we want the curicuium to be
Inspirational — in its contant snd its delivery; we want our staff to ba inspired and to be
Insplrational to our shudents.

Public Banefit

City College Norwich is an exempt charity under Part 3 of the Chanties Act 201 1 and following
fhe Machinery of Government changes in July 2018 is regulated by the Secretary of Stale for
Education for all FE Comporations in England.

The members of the Carparation, who are trustees of the charity, are disclosed on page 16. In
setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, the Govarning Body has had dus regard
fof the Charty Commission’s guidarce on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary
guidancs on the advancement of education. The guldance sets cut the requirsment that il
organisations wighing 1o be recognised se charties must demonstrate; explicitly, thal thelr aims
are for the public banaft,

In delivaring its missian, the College provides tha following identiiable public henefits through the
advancement af aducalion!

+ High-guality teaching

« Widening paricipation and tackiing social exclusian

v Excellent employment record for students

» Sirong studant support systems

» Links with empkyyers, industry and commiers

» Links with Mew Anglia Local Enterprise Padnership
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Strategy

201 7/18 has been tha lourth year of operation of the College's Stratagic Framework. The
framewaork was developed thraugh extensive consuliation with students, stafl, govemors and
stakaboldars and is organised with four "pillars”

= Carmmunity, Employers and Stakeholders,

= Students,

v Dultura of Excallence,

» Growth and Susteinability

The Strategic Framewark is ascompanled by 5 Strategic Aims and success Indicatars, which are
as follows,

Aim One: To achieve gutstanding outcames for our students, employers and other clignts with &
welcoming and engaging environment that is espectful, inclusive and fostars success.

Buccess Indicators

» Measures of student achievement and progreasion are autstanding

« Provision judged by extemal bodies to be of the highest passible grade

«  Student involvenient in dasigning, dalivering and commissioning leaming
» Wary high student, staff, employer and slakeholder satisfacton retings

Aim Two: To ba recognised as a driving faree in skills training for regional econamic
development,

Success Indicators

« Employer or other stakehaldar ‘sponsor’ for all full-time programmes

« Excellent, induatny standard facilities avallable for delivery

= Currleulum constantly reviewsd and, whera possible, aligned to regional pricrities

» Leaming modsls and infrastructure developed o enable students 1o learn anywhens

Alm Three; To schiava excallence through our ability to challanga each other, and our processas,
as we leam, teach and work togathar,

Success Indlcators

= Ways of Working embedded in staff and studant lifa at our college

« Highly effective processes and procedunas which fimit our impact on the enviranmenl
» Staff jpumay focusad on maximising individusl potantial and well-being

+» Sirong stakeholder particlpation In our evalugtion and review processes

Aim Four: To achieve financisl sustainabidlity through efficient and effactive use of our human and
physical assets whilst confidently taking intelligent risks aligned to our strategic framework,

Success Indicetors
+ Financial rasaurces enable U2 to meet our stratagic aims

All staff confident in practicing entrepreneurial thought and action
Al curiculum areas have g profitable commersal incomse straam

» Qualified and experienced workforge, exoallant in their fizld
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Aim Five: To work with our students, community, employars and stakehelders in order to grow
pur catlege and Increase our influence.

Success Indicators
» Partnerships with other colleges and providers give us mare influence than we would have on

T ST

= High profile, well recognized celebrations of succass

= Btaff, studants and alumni confidently promoting our collage

» Strgng and produdtive pardnerships with a broad range of amplayars. schools and other
stakehalders

Dwring the 2017/18 academic yaar tha Gavarning Body and Executive Team of the colleges
undartook to review the 5 Strategic Aims to clarily tha key areas of focus for the remaining 18
monlhe of the strategy (201819 acadamic year anwards). This led to some small adjustmants Lo
warding and 2 refreshed common understanding of the aims and the role they play in shaping the
wark of the Collaga.

A roling programme of tha agragment and monitoring of annuel Stratagic, Improvement and
Ernhancement Temets is camplatad by the College to meet the Strategic Aims by 2019 this
includes actions resulting from the Collages comprehensiva Salf-Asssssmant Report (SAR)
process for Further Education and Annual Menlterng Repart {AMR) for Higher Educatlon..

In 2017148 there were & headline strategy targets, 11 improvement targets and 2 enhancament
targets. These weare set in collaboration with the Acadermic Manageément Board and scrutinised
and monitorad by Governors through review at avary meating.

Achievement af strategy targets 1z as follows:

SA1: Quality of HE: Successful ragistration with the Office for Students as an "Approved”
Provider — The College has successfully achieved registration with the Office far Students
witheut any conditions and is therefore an approvad provider.

Bl Gusiity of FE: 84% of currlculum area SAR grades to be good or outstanding in
17118 {78% in 1617) — This area i= rated red as o achisva [he 94% 1arget only one ares could be
graded a8 requiring improvament however fwo areas are proposad with this grade, Hospitality
and Catering and Phognix Plus. The percentage of good and better SAR grades has improved
howaver to 333,

Bl FE student satisfaction - FE satisfaction survey result for "Overall, | am satisfied
with the College” to Increase by 2% to BB% - This target was not met as the meult of the
survey was 81%. Further analysis continues to inform actions to improve student sstisfaction in
201818,

B HE student satisfaction: NSS Question 27 "Overall, | am satlsfled with the quality of
the course™ to increase by B% to the 17/18 Institutional average of 78% - A 79 increase to
77% positive responses to question 27 fall just short of the targeted lavals of improvement,
Student satisfaction @8 measurad by the NS5 remains a critical driver of guality Improvement
work in our HE team In 218113,

SAS: Staff satisfaction - Overall summary grade for satisfaction to rise 2% to 84% - for a
nurber of reasans we have not camed out the staff satisfacten survey at the usual time which
would enable us to repod on this target, A revised survey, combining questions from the existing
survey and the newly releasad Ofetad staff survey will be camied out in 2019

SAB: Finance KPls B0% green at the end of year and financlal health grading of good
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maintained — the ESFA have confirmed aur financial heslth grading as good and the Business
Committee has confirmed that equivalent performance of B0% of KPIs rated green hed baan
achipved at the end of the financial yaar, The financial KPls are baing rafined for 16/19 to
improve ciarity,

I addition to the six main strateqic tamets sat out above, the memger of City College Norwlch
and Paston Skddh Form College on Decembar 19 2017 was a very significant developmaent for
beth institutions. The 201718 academic year was characterised by continued work to develop
the culture of the marged instilution and to develop understanding of how it might serve its
communities hest, with 2 refrashad focus on the roke it will need to play for Morth East Naorfaix. A
consultation was held with tha managament and support staff wha transfarred from Paston Sidh
Form College and the subsequent reslructuring has provided a revised leadership and suppor
struciure and has also helped address the underdying financial challenge at Paston. Small
curiculum evolulions were made in 201818 as a result of this work, including soma signiflcant
timetabling changas la align Morwich and Paston A lavel timetables and work conlinues to
realise the hanefits af the maerger for students, staff and our communities.

Financial Dbjectives
The Collaga's financial objectives ara.

+ 1o achieve an annual operating sunplus

» to pursues alternative sources of funding. on 2 selectiva basis. consistent with the Collage's core
competencies, and the need for a financial contribution to the College’s overall finances

= o generate sufficient levals of incoma to support the asset base of the College

v In furthar improve the College's shorter-term louldity

v 0 fund continued capital Investment

A sefies of perfarmance indicators have been agreed to moniter the successful implementation of
pollicies,

Pearformance |ndicatoms

The Coliege has continued Lo parform well an many key performance measures during 2017/148
althaugh there have rlsa been some areas of challenge, The College’s self-assessment for
2017118 is proposing to retain tha ‘good” overall effectiveness grade which would confinue to
match our Ofsted grade recesivad in February 2017 (& report in which every sub-grade was judgad
good except for High Needs Provisien which was rated outstending). 1L should be noted that this
i the fivst year where performancs data will be published for the margad insttutkon.

Headline achisvement rates for 16-18 year old's have decreased by 1.2% but remain above
comparable 2016/17 Mational Averages. A key driver in his decrease was a dacline in AS level
and GCSE maths and English pass rates, However, value-added and progress measurss for A
level and GCSE maths and English provision will shaw an increase on 1617 outcomes onoe final
data is published.

For 19+ provision, @ small 0.4% incresse in overall achievement rates was driven by increased
maths and English pass rates for both GCSE's and Functional Skills, The Cellage's headling
achievement rates remaln below National Comparators akhough some of that is due to the mix
and balance of the provision that we affer, Parts of aur Adult provision remains key areas for
focused attention.

The College has had some challenges In recruiting staff fa mest the growing demand in
Apprenticeship provision, In some kay scctors, this has im pactad nagatively on the fimaky
achievement af appranlices and this has been & focus of continued remadial work throughout the
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year.

In 204 7118 the College combined allocations mid-year becausa of the merger with Pastan Sixth
Form Callege and adjusted 1o the new funding regime for apprenticeship prevision. In both Adult
and Appranticeship delivery the Cellage focused carefully on the incoma kevals against the
budgat. Table 1 belew Indicates outcome of actual earnings against allocations and budgets
(whera rpprapriala). Strong 16-18 regruitment hes impacled positively on 201718 alipcalions via
the lagged learner mechanizm. Appranticeship performance was slrahg and matched sllccations
whilst the Adult Education Budget was not fully utilised despite same goad growth in provision
argas such as ESOL,

Merged : End Yaar
Funding 201718 Qut-

Tahle 1 _Allecatlon | tum | Difference
| 16-15 Funding™ £21,900,785.40 | E21, 518 477.B2 98% |
Adull Education Budget F1,844DB0.00 | £1.612727.00 BT %

Apprenticaships Mik £3.465793.06 |

4§10 studant funding’ lirs shows the aquivalert af 12 months of Peston acsivity. wheress the Statutony Accourts only
inclutes actusls besed on the menger frorn 1 Decernter 2017 (eght months)

Financlal results

The total compreheansive incorme far the year was a surplus of £5, 777k (£1,967k deficit 201 GBI -
the sumplus is due to three reasons: a small operating surplus in the College during the yaar, the
nél assets that have transferred from Paston Sigh Form Collage (PSFC) following the meargar

(£2 1m): and actuaral gains on the Local Govemment Pension Scheme liabilites (£4.5m). Tha
Callege generated an operating surplus (bafore FRS102 Pensions and P3FC netasaet
adjustmants} in tha year of £212k (E341% sunplus In 2016/17). Including the FR3102 Pensions and
FPSFC net seset edjustments the surplus/deficit befora other gains and losses was E7B5k surplus
{£73k deficit in 20161 7).

The College has non-current fixed assets of £28,518k at 31 July 2018 (£25,453k at 31 July 2017)
and net current assets of £4. 284k (£3, 368k at 31 July 2017}, including cash balances of £B,939k
(E7. 110k at 31 July 2017). Craditors greater than one year are £10,624K at 31 July 2018 (£0.025k
st 31 July 2017) and these comprisa 2 bank loan (£1.902k), 3 SALIX enargy efficiency loan (L6}
and daferred government capital grants (£8,852k). The defined banedil pansicn labilty for the
Local Gavesnment Pension Scheme was £16, 072k at 31 July 2018 (£10,030k at 31 July 2017)
and other provisions telalad £3.63% at 31 July 2018 (£3 973k at 21 July 201 .

The College has accumulatad reserves at 31 July 20148 of £1,667K (surplus) (£4.1 10k deflcit at 31
July 201 7). The overall increasa in reserves in 201718 is primarily due to actuarial gains of

£4 8905k on the Local Gavernmant Pension Scheme liabilities and the transfer of tha PSFC net
assets (£2 085k including fair value adjustment}. Excluding the impact of the main Local
Governmert Pension Scheme Lishility, the College hias an 1&E resarve of £11.021k sumplus at 31
July 2018 (£8.004k sumplus at 31 July 2017) and a ravaluation reserva of £7 513k (E7, 709k at 31
July 20173, The TEN Group has a reserves palicy which requires a terget msarves level of 2-4%
of income. For the Callega this translates to cash and reserves of cE740k ta £1.5m. The College
axcaads these leveks

The Callege has skgnificant relianca on the Education and Skills Funding Agency for s principal
funding saurce. In 2017718 the ESFA provided 66% (2016/17: BE%) of the College's total Income.

The College is committed to observing the imporiance of sector messuras and Indicators and uss
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the FE Cholces wibsite which looks at measures such as achievement rates, The Collegeia
raguirad to complete the annual Finance Racord {Decembar) and the annwal Financlal Plan [July}
fior the Education and Skila Funding Agency. The Financa Record and the Finance Plan poduces
a financial health grading. The cument rating of Good (both for 201718 and far 2015-19 budgal
and for 2015-20 summary forecast) is considered an acceptable autcome,

Political and charitable contributions
The Callege made na politics!l or chaniabla contributicns during the waar.
Subsidiary companies

Tha Collage owns 51% of tha £1 crdinary share capital of Mofolk Educational Services Limited
{("MES"), a company incorparated in England and Walas, Norfolk Educational Servces Limited
wes established to provide shared services ta the TEN Group, The ramaining 48% of tha £1
ordinary share capital is cened by TEN and an the basis of voting Aghls and conirolling influancea
the results of MES are consolidated into the TEM Group accounts {not the Collage).

Treasury policles and objectlves

Treasury management is the management of the Collage's cash flows, its banking. money market
and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associatad with thosa activities;
and the pursult of optlmum perfommance consistert with those risks.

The Collage hasa separate treasury management poficy in place.

Short tarm borrowing for tamporary ravanue puipeses s agthorised by the Accounting Officer. Al
borrowing reguires the sutharisation of the Comporation and shall comply with the requirements of
the Financial Memorandum,

Cash flows

Crverall pash hes decraased by £171k during 201718 (Increasa of £1, 756k during 2016/17). This
mavement is comprised:

=  Cperating cash inflow af E7E1k (20161 7 £2 924k cash inflow) = this shows the overall cash
maovement anging from the gperating surplus for the year;

= Net cazh outflow from investing activities £574k (2018717 838k cash outflow) = this is
primarily the annual IT equipment expenditure; and

v Net cash outflow from financing activiies £318k (2016117 net cash outfiow of £330K) — this is
thi: repayment of capital and interest fior our bank lcan and SALIX anargy lean.

v Cashat 31 July 2018 was £6.925k (37 July 2017 was £7 110k},

Tha Collaga has a londg-tarm [oan of £2 082k at 31 July 2018 (£2,256K &t 37 July 2077 This will
be repaid over a 10-yaar pariod with a fixed rate of interast,

Resources
The College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its sirategic objectives.
Fimancisl

The Callege has & net aszcat pasition on the balance sheet of £1,667k at 31 July 2018 (E4. 110k
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net lisbility st 31 July 2017)
The net assst position is comprisad:
= Incame and expenditure account of £11,021k surplus (£8,004k surplus at 31 July 2077}
« Lacal Government pension schems resedva £16,97 2k deficit (£19,920k daficlt at 31 July 2017)
» Revaluation reserva ET7.513k surplus (£7, 709 surplus at 31 July 2017}
v  Restricted reserva £1058k surplus [(£107k surplus at 37 July 2097}

Paople

The Collage empkiys 585 {2016/17; 568) peopla (axpressad as fulltime equivalants). of whem
286 (201617 274) ara saching staff. The increase was expected as & result of the margar.
Current and Future Davelopment and Performance

Student numbers

Thie 2017118 student numbers are presented in table balow.

Yaar 16-18 Students 19+ Students | Apprentices
2014715 4450 ' 1380 1420

[ 201516 4520 060 1360
201617 4140 1320 1350
2017HE 485D 1250 ' 1380

18-1B recruitmant Increased significently dua to tha merger with Paston Sidh Form College.
However. [ike for like raczultment an the Norwich site increased in 17718 compared ta 161 7. Adult
Education provision continuad to see strong demand although there waz soma reduction in
Access to HE recruitmant. Apprenticeships increased with growth In higher level work and alsc as
a result of the College being askead Lo support apprenfices who had begun their studies with a
laeal tralning provider that went into adminlstration.

Studamt achievements

16-18 students continue to achieve well at City College Narwich, with most headling
echisvamant rates well above comparable 2016717 Matienal Averagas. In several areas, the
parformance of students ranks amanget the top 20 colleges nationally. 2017118 saw pleasing
increases in the valee-added and progress measuras relating to A level provision and GUSE
maths and Englizh. This resulted from caoncantrated and targeted work from kay currlculum
areas and a revisad maths and English strategy for the College. However, some challenges
were presented by tha change to new externally assassed vocational provision which was less
successful for soma students than predecessor qualifications.

For 189+ provislon, 201718 sew soms Increases in peformance In key areas such as
Functional Skills, although mare work is ragulied to further improve the cutcemes in this ares.
Acnesa to HE mmains at high levels of achisverment, although reduced fram the high point in
16/17. Howewar, the student's rales of prograssion to HE has futher improved, showing very
positive outcomes for those completing the courses.

I 201718 HE studant achigvements remain at satistactory levels, Despite significant national
attenticn being paid to “grade inflation” within the HE sector. the College has mairtained a
strong and acceptable level of sludents achieving the highast grades. Detailed analysis al lovels
of key dameqraphic groups have identified a number of possibly “undarparforming” groups and
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thie Iz a ey focus of some 18/19 activity to start to understand these issues better,

Wilkin Appranticeship proviskan, 2017/18 hag been a year of challenge lsading 1o lower than
tameted aulsames. Some factors including slafl avallability have negativaly impacted on the
timely achisvemant of apprantices at Lawals 2 and 3 and outocomes in this provisian type are 3
key focus for 2018719

The Morfalk Teacher Training Cantra (NTTC) celebrated the successful campletion of its largest
avar cohon of students in 201718 whan 37 students completed thair training as secondany
school leachers, with 190% of them pragressing into employment fallowing the completion of
thair studias.

Future Developmants

201819 and 201920 Wil be charactensed by the Collage preparing to pilat the naw Technical
('T") Level qualifications from September 2020. The college is one of only B4 institutions
nationally to ba salectad te pliot the new qualifications by the DE and extensive work is
undenvay to enaure this exciting curriculum development is carelul Integrated into the axisting
course offer.

Within Appranticeship werk, the College conlinues o grow provision with Lavy paying employers
and sacters. |n 201818 an innovative pragrarmme of worl with the UEA and local NHS Heslth
Trusts has saen the College work to deliver the new Mursing Associate Higher Apprenticeships.
This type of collaborative mode! of apprenticeship scharme delivery is a model far further
developments.

Curriculum developmeants

In 201748 the college providsd substantial courses in 14 of the 15 subject sector areas [S3A),
with only S34 3 tAgricultture and Horiculture) not having significant levels of activity, The Colleges
Currculum Strategy has informed the developments which have oocourrad in 2017718 and tha
following ara axamples of this,

Planning of the Curriculum: The 2017/18 academic yaar saw & number of changes in response
to the challenges the Curriculum Strategy providad us. Examples included.
" The planning for and delivery of new Apprerticeship Standards, These confinua o be
ralled out socording ko employer demand.
. Revislon to our A level offer Lo reflect national changes to new “linear” 2 year coursas,
. Cantinuad growth of leisure and eammercial offer for businaess and adults, responding to
msrkal and amployer demsnd,
. The implamantatan of a new Maths and English GCSE strategy that emphasizes GCSE
study owar attematives such as funchional skills,

Structure of curmiculum: Tha Callege confinues ta avalve the structure of the curtculum to
dayvelop students. Examplas includ:

«  Contlhuing to respond to the introduction of reformed Technical Certificate and ROF
gualifications in 8 number of currlculus areas with enhancad synoptic testing and
examinalicn content.

' Finding new and innovative ways of supporting the 20% “off the job” requirement far
appranticaships that ensures apprantices make excellent prograss In their learning.

. Refining tha course offer and support mechanlsms associsted with our Phosnix Plus
GCSE rest programmea o more effectively support students.

Mature of currlculum: The natura of the curiculum hae developed a3 we have:
+  Sought to further enrich the curiculum by engaging with new employer led briefs and live
projacts.
« Further enhanced the focus on progression to HE in s number of key areas to support the



City Collage Norwlch
gacial mabiiity of students.

Challenges for the next 12 months
There are 8 number of challenges that the College’s curnculum will have to respond to over the
next 12 months:
= Maximising the banefits of the merger on the provision available to people in Morth East
Morfolk and for A laval avallabllity of minarity and specialist subjects across the county.,
= |mplementing the pilating af “Industry Placements” within full time courses for 16-18 year
olds ahead of the introduction of T Levels in 2020,
« Respanding to tha OFE reviews of Fost 18 and alsa of Level 4 and 5 provision due for
publication in sarty 2019
» \Undarstanding and intempreting the new Cfsted Education Inspection Framework which will
came inte effact in Saptember 20119,
= Warking undar Office for Students regiatration reguiraments for out Higher Education
provisian

Principal Rlsks and Unceriainties:

The College has continued work during the 201718 year to develop grd ambed the system of
intermal control, Including financial, opertianal and ek management which is dasigned to protect
tha Collage's assets and reputation.

Tha Execuliva Team undertakes & comprehensiva raview of the fsks to which tha Collage i
exprsed. They identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which
should mitigste any potential impact on the College, The intemal contrals are then implemantad
and the subsenuent yaar s appraisal will review their effectivenass and progress against nsk
mitigation actions. In addifion ta the annual review, the Execufive Team will also consider any risks
which may anse 83 a result-of 8 new area of work being undertaken by tha Callege. Each meeting
af the Executive team has o standing tem 1o idantlfy new or emerging risks or 1o aller previous
assessments of rlsk,

A risk registar is maintainad at College level which is reviewed regularty by the Audit Commitiea.
The risk registar ideniilies the key risks, the likelihood of those rlsks occurring, their patantizl
Impact on the Collegs and tha actions being taken to reduce and miligate the risks. Risks are
priarilzed using & consistent aconng &ystem.

This is suppored by a cutture of risk managament throughout the College with sk ragularly
discussad in managemant meetings.

Crutlined helaw is & description of the principal risk factars thal may affect the College, Mot all the
factors are within the College's control. Other factors besides those listed below may alsa
adversely affect tha Collage.

1. Government funding

Finding from the Govemment efther directly thraugh grants or Indirectly via student lean
palicies, remains tha kay source of income for the Collage. Grant funding levels remain
static despite considerabla leblying and with associated costs pressuras including staffing
costs and inflationary pressuras, this continues to place pressuras on the College.

For 20189 onwards, there arg a number of rigks currently antlcipated;

= The Govemmant commissioned reviaw of posi-18 education has been dalayed but is
fikaly ta now report In early 2018, There appears 1o be potential far this repart 1o
propose many significant reforms to the system which could Include changes to the
cumrent Student Tuition Fee Loans levels far undargraduale study. Such changes
would imp=ct on tha wider Unlversity sector in addition 1o Colleges providing HE but
careful engagement with key bodies such as the AaC is underway to ensure tha risks
are undarstood. In addition. the new HE requlator the Office for Studants (OF3) will

11
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be reviewing the teaching funding it distributes against a backdrop of redusing OfE
budgeta for non-schaot actity.

= 16-18 pravision generates the largest slament of government funding for the College
and the levels of this funding i driven primarily by the number of studants recruited
and the base rate provided for student plases. The college continues to ba operating
within an era af low numbers of young pecple in the 16-18 cohort and therefore
pressure will continus to ensura we recruit effectively in & competitive market. In
addilion, desplte local and natienal loblwying, the static base rate tunding for 16-18-
year-old students (which is effect a real tarm cut) remains in place for the
foreseaatla futura, placing further financial pressures onthe College.

s Tha devalution of the Adult Education Budget to combined autharity araas nationally
cauld destabilise the funding system aven for providers such as the College ot
sarving students who live within 8 combined authonty area. VWhilst some assurances
are in place for 2015/20 funding lavels, the position beyond that is uncerlaln at this
fime..

« Apprentleeship funding continues to ba volatile as the Levy and non-Levy funding
gystams continue o adjust to tha new anvironment created by govarnment led policy
change. Whilst the Collega has navigaled these choppy waters stfeclively since the
Lewy was intraduced In May 2017, the political sensifivity of this aganda makes
further palicy change very possible and difficult o predict,

+ The College receives funding to support students with Additional Leamling needs
from two sources; from gavarnmant directly via allocstions and fram local autherties
an a case by case bagis. Whilst the Termer ks formuls driven and urder the same
static funding level pressures a3 the 168-18 budget, local suthorities sra continulng to
rafomm their funding mechanisms and this eould lead to redustions in funding for
individual studants and provizsion.

2. Maintain adeguate funding of pension liabilities

The financial statements rapor the share of the Local Govarnmant Penslon Scheme deficit
an tha College's balance sheet in ling with the requirements of FRS 102, Furthermore, tha
Callege's balance shest includes a pravision for the value of the pension liabllity for those
et wiio transferred under TUPE 1o NES. Sec Mote 26 for furthar detail.

Tha triennial valuation of the LGPS achema in March 2019 will determing the amploayer
contribution retes sffective for the 3 years commencing April 2020, Thare ramaing a risk of
increased emplayer contributions into tha Fund.

In refation to the Teachars' Pension Scheme there is & much anticipated nations! increase I
amployer contribution ratas from 16.48% to potentially 23% (an increase of 40%), affectiva
from September 2019, Given tha significance of this increase the Collage and the wider
sector are hoping that central Governmant will be funding this increase through the nexd
Comprahansive Spending Review.

3. Lack of Capital Invesiment

Civer the pasl 3 academic years the level of caplial funding that the Collage receives or hes
direct accazs 1o has reduced significantly. Govemment sources of Skills Capital funding
previously came eithar inthe form of “bids” or annual allocations operated by the ESFA (or
predecessor arganisations). More recentiy these funding pets have baan devalved to the
Mew Anglia LEP and been amalgamated info other LEP capital funding stresms 1o the
datriment of the College's ability to receive capital investment. Small amounts of annual
capital allocations are generated by the College’'s HE work, but this reguires targating on HE
provision needs, Therefore, currently the College must generatla ail capital funding from s
own resourcas, adding significantly o lhe funding pressures on tha instituticn.
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Stakeholder Relationships

In line with other collages and with universities, City Collega Norwich has many stakehakdars.
Theseinclude;

+ Studenls;

¢ Education Sector Funding bodies;

« Slaff;

+ FarentsfCarers;

« Local employers (with speaific links);

v Local Authorities and local schodls,

» Mew Anglis Local Enterprise Parnership (NALEP):
s The local cammiunity:

s Linivarsity of East Anglia;

« Other FE and HE Institutions;

« Government led bodies such as the Morwich Opportunity Ares
 Trado unizns; and

¥ Professional bodies.

The College recognises the importance of these refationships and activaly engapes with thess key
partners in a aumber of formal and informal ways. Sankor college staff have formal roles in a
number af key local stakeholder boards and commitlees whlch in addition to covering post 16
edyucation also include specific areas of focus including safeguarding, SEN and carears guldance.
The Principal sits on the Norwich Opportunity Ares Board, playing a key rofe in steering this
Imporant locsl initiative which focuses on enhancing the sacial mobillity of young people in
Morfalk. In addition, regular maedings are scheduled with local authority colleagues to ensure thal
the college continues to play the cenlral role inthe werk of the County and regien.

Chur relationship with aur validating University UEA continues ta ba strong and productive. Both
tha Princlpal and the Deputy Principal ars formally members of senior bodies at UEA recognising
tha strength of this parnership and the College actively engages with the Academic Partnership
work of UEA through structured mastings and protocols. In addition, the College matntains a
closa and effective working relationship with (ha other main Norfolk based HE provider, Norwich
University of the Arts (NUA) based an ragular maetings and targeted work in areas of shared
interest, This ca-cparative work in the HE sactar undarpins the: Network for East Anglian
Callaborative Outreach {neaco) project which lpoks to enhance HE progression for young people
from our region, The nesco projact works across Norfolk, Suffelk and Cambridgeshire and Lhe
Deputy Principal formally reprasants the FE sector on the Universily of Cambridge led staenng

groug

The Collage has continued to take & lsading role in regional work with tha NALEF and the other
FE collsagues through the New Anglia Colloges Group {(NACG). The Principal |s 8 member of tha
Skills Board of the NALEP to represent the FE seclor and contributes to the NACG Principals
group work, whikst the Deputy Princips! lsads the NACG Deputies group that maels tescnthiy.

Mare racantly the College Executive Team has taken on 3 numbar of formal roles at & natienal
level ta ansura the College is well engaged with influzncing national policy. The Principal is 2
membar of tha Assaclation of College's (AoC) Beard and the Principal, Deputy Princlpal and
Director of SEN and Nursery all it an netional AcC policy groups. Thera ara a number of
additional engegemants via awarding organisations and other secior bodies such as the Mixed
Ecanomy Group in which College staff play a formal and active rale.

13
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Equal opportunitles

The College is committed to ensuring agquallty of opportunity for all who lesm and work here. We
razpact and value positively differencea in race, gendar, sexual orentation, disability, religian or
belial and age, We stive vigoroushy to remove conditions which place paapla al a disadvantage
and we will actively cambat bigotny. Thiz pelicy iz resourced, implementad and manitored on a
planned basis.

The Cellege's equality statement is-that weare:
= & College whers everyons benofits fmom the wide diversity of staff and studants

« A College we can all accass with equal easa and dignily, enjoy a sense of belonging, and
where leaming and working have been designed with sach of us in mind

The Coltege publishes an Annual Equality Repart and Equality Objectives to ensure compliance
with all relevant equality legislstion including tha Equality Act 2010,

The College has committed to the ‘Mindful Emplayer’ initiative to assist the mental health
wallbaing of staff. The Callege has alsc implemented an updated Equality & Diversity training
programme which all staff have attended. Refresher training and training for naw starlars |2
carned qut gan an angoing basiz.

Cisablllty statement

The College is 8 'Positive about Disabled” employer and has committed to the principlas and
objectives of the Positive about Disablad standard. The College considers all emplaymeant
applicaticns from disabled persans, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individusls concamed,
and guaranteos an interview to any disablad applicant wha masets the essential critena for the
past. Whera an axisting emplovee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that
amplaymant with the College continues, The Goliega's palicy is 1o provide tralnlng, career
development and opparlunities for promotion which, a3 far 25 possible, provide [dentlcal
opportunities ta thosa of non-disablod employeess

Trade Unlon Facilities Time Reporting
For pariod 1 Aprll 2017 1o 31 Marmch 2018

Ratavani Unien Offickals:

Number of employees who were ralavant | Full-Ume equivalent employes number of
union officials duvng the relevant perod. | reprasantatives.

4 2,93
Parcentage of Time S3pent on Facility Tima:
| Percantage of tims | Number of employees
0%
1-50% 4
_B1-88%, ,
109 |
Perentage of Pay Bill Spent on Facility Tims:
Total cost of facilily e E15, 253
Tolal pay bl £20,318 984
Parcentage of fotal pay bl spent on
fachify tirme 0. 08%,.

Paid frada union activithes

Time spent on paid trade wnion sotivilies | 0% |
a5 & percentagae of (ol pald Faclify time. I
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Disclosure of Infarmation to Auditors

Tha members who held office st the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are
each awara, thera = no relevant audit infermation of which the College's auditers are unaware,
and each membar has laken all the steps that he or she cught to have taken to be awara of any
relevant audit infarmation and te establish that the College’s auditors are aware of that
information,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 11 December 2018 and signed on its
bahall by

A e,

Andrew Hamas
Chairman of the Corporation
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3. Statement of Corporate Governance and Intermal Control

The following statement & provided to enakbla readers of the annusl report and accounts of the
College to ohtain a better understanding of iis gavernance and legal struciura.

The College andeavors to conduct |12 business:

« |n accordance with the sevan principles [dentlfied by the Committss on Standards in Public
Lifa (sellessness, integrity, ohjsctivity, accountabillty, openness, hanesty and laadership);

« In full accordance with the Code of Good Governance for English Colleges: and

« having dus regard ta the Uk Comorate Govemancs Ceda (the Code”) insofar as it is
applicable to the further education secior.

The College Is committed to sxhibiting best practice in all sspecis of corporate governance and in
particular the College/Board hes adopied and complied with the Code of Good Governancs for
English Callsges. We have not adoptad end therefora do not apply the UK Corparata
Govermanca Coda. However, we hava reporsd an our Corporate Governanca arrangements Ly
drawing upan best practice available, including these aspects of the UK Comorate Governance
Code we consider (o be relovant to the further education sector and best practice.

In the opinion of the gavamars, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code of Good
Governance for English Colleges and it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2018,
This was tested by intermal audil In Apdl 2016 for Principals 8 and 10 which gave significant
assurance and furthemmore in May 2017 (or Princlpalz- 1, 2 and 3 which gave sirong assurance.
The Goveming Body recognises thai, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, #
has a particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate govemnance at all times,

City Coliega Morwich is an exempt charity undar Part 3 of the Charities Aat 2011 and following
the Machinery of Govemmaent changes in July 2018 is regulated by the Secretary of Stata for
Education for all FE Corparations In England, The mambers of the Goveming Body, who arg
trustens of the charty, are disclased below,

In setting and reviewing the Cellege's strategic objectives, the Gaveming Body has had due
regard for the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its
zupplemeantary guidanca on the advancement af education. The guidance sate aul the
requirement that sl argenisalions wishing to be recognisad as charlties must cemaonstrata,
axplicitly, that thair sims ara for the public benefit. The delivery of public benefit is covared
throughout the Cperating and Financlal Review above.
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The Corporation _
The mambers who sarved the Compoaration during the year and up to the date of signature of this
raporl were as follows:

[Name Datecf | Termof | Date of Status of Committess | Corporation
appolnbment | office | rezlgnation appointrment sarved meEting
sitendance
201718
Mr A Barnes 022012 | 4 years Garral Vica-Chair of 7]
; Corporation; Chair
ra-sppoirtsd of B
21022016
Dr A Blanchflower | $810E0158 4 years Genaral (] 5G
tir L Mlichell 01720 T 1 year Zudent Linion B, CS 3
Beprenantative
re-appainted
0nTie0Ls
Wi M Coimer 121202065, dyears (10072018 | Genesl Chair o G
’ Corporadion: B,
re-appeinied os
T2 009,
re- Appinted
TR0TEIE
re-apgaointsd
SAMOT20T
| hr M Roberts NEC22014 1 year 12032618 | FE Studant L a0
Rearesentstive
Mizs L Catlaghan- | 04102017 1 ypear 072018 | HE Sudem CE aE
Blates Rapresentallve
M= J Lanning | OTOTE0S 4 WeEE Eeneral Chair of G5 5lls]
his C Paasgood N30R2012 Prircipa fram B, CS GG
0N 2012;
PrincipaliCEC
rom
(o PR a b e
M= R Parry 111202015 dyears | 01 W20ME | Genaral E 172
Derige Troughton | 27032048 4 years General 3
ir 1 W ebk: NMISRA012 4 yaars Genersl a%
re-appainted
0052016
N Z Virgin 13122008 | dyears 1072078 | General F 26
re-appalniec
12922070
fe-appaointed
1122014
Mz B. Sherwond DeM0izie o years Zenersl Gk of A 58
bt N Bartram DE0E2018 4 yEars Ganeral A i

Key: & = Audit and Risk Commillee; B = Business Cormmilbee CE = Curriculurm ang Standards Commities

1w
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Datalls of the Corporation

It is tha Carperation's respansibility to bring indepandant judgment to bear on issuas of strategy.
performance, rascurcas and standards of conduct.

The Corporation is provided with regular and timely infarmation on tha ovarall financial
narfarmance of the College together with other Information such a8 perfarmance against funding
targets, proposed capilal axpenditure, quality mattars and persennel related mattars such as
haalth and safety and environmental issuss. Tha Carporation mesls at least ance atarm.

The Clerk to the Corparation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the
Governars. The ragister iz available for inapection at the above address.

All gavamors are able 1o take independant professional advice in futherance of their duties at
the Callege’s expense and have access ta the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the
Baard for snsuring that all applicable pracedures and regulations are complied with. The
appointmant, evaluation and removal of tha Clark are matters for the Corparation as a whole,

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplisd te govamors in a imely manner, prior o Board
meetings. Briefings ara alsa provided on an ad-noc basis.

The Corporation hes & strong and Independent non-sxecutive alament and no individual or graup
deminates its decision-meking procass. The Corporation considars thal each of its non-executiva
members is Independent of managemant and free from any busingss or othar relationship which
could materally Interfere with the exercisa of their Independent judgmant.

There is a clear division of responsibility in thet tha roles of the Chairman of tha Cemporation and
the Principal of the Collags ara separate.

The Corporation conducts ite business through & number of committess, Each committes has
terms of reference. which have haan approved by the Comporatian. Thase committees in 2017/18
warg:

sudit and Risk Buginess, and Curriculum and Standards

Minutes of 2l Board and committes meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the
Corporation, are available on the College website ar from the Clerk to the Corporation st

Cly College Moreich
|pswich Road
Morwich

MRZ 2L

Appointments to the Corporation

Any new appointmants to the Gorporstion ara a matter for the consideration of the Corporation,
acting in colleboration with Transforming Education InMorfolk, the Parent Undertaking of the
Corporation under the Inetrument & Aricles of Governiment. The Corporation's Business
Committes incledes a search function and is reaponsible for monitoring Corporation mambership
and recommending any new member for the Parent Undartaking's consideration of appoiniment,
The Corporation is respansible for ensuring that appropriate training 2 provided a3 redq uirad,

Mambers of the Corporation are appeinted for a tem of offica not axceading 4 years. In
Septamber 2016, The Corparation approved that members may sarve more than 2 terms (sight
vears] after the Corporation have assessed tha composition of the Board 1o ansurc it continuwes to
have the right mix of skills, gender, race, axpearience and commitment. This is also applicable  a
Governor were to progress into a new role such as Chair of the Board or Chair of 2 Commitiee.

&
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Audit and Risk Commiites

In 201 7/18. the Audit and Risk Committes coemprised four members (ingluding co-apted members
as nacassany). The Committee operates in accordance with wiitten terms of reference approved
by the Corporation, Its pumpose Is to advise the Corporstion on the adequacy and effectivenass of
the College's system of internal contral and itz arrangements for risk management. contral and
aVarnance processes

The Audit and Risk Committee meets on a termly basis and provides 8 fonum for repoding by the
Cabege’s intarnal and financial statement auditors, whe have access to the committea for
independant discussion, without the presenca of Collsge managers, The Commiiltes also receives
and gonsiders raparts from the main FE funding bodies. as they affect the Cellege’s business.

The College's intemal auditors monitor the systems of internal control, risk management controls
and govemance processes in accardance with an agreed plan of input and report their findings 10
management and the Audit and Risk Committee,

Managers are responsible for the implamentation of agreed recommendations and Intemal audit
undartake pariodic follow up reviews to ensura such recommendations have baean implamented.

The Audit and Risk Commitiee also atvises tha Carporation on the appeintment of internat and
financial statements auditors, In conjunction with Transforrning Education in Norfelk (TEMN) Group
policy in this area, and their remuneration for both audit and rin-audit wark,

Mealings attended in 201718 wen a5 follows:

Mame | Meetings Attended Owt of Possible
Moel Bardram ) : 2

HNikki Gray [eo-opted)
Ereo Sherwood (Lhair)
| Zak Virgln

kS

Baid | —=

3
d
d

Busingss Commlites

The Business Commitiee's main purpose is to oversee general financlal matters of the Baard.
The Committee’s respansibilibes include making recommendatians 1o the Board on the
remunaralion and benefits of the Principal and other senior pest holders.

Detrils of remunaraticn far the year ended 31 July 2018 are set out in nate B of the financial
statements, Maetings attanded In the year wera a5 follows:

Name Meeatings Attended _ Out of Possible

| Andrew Barnas (Chalr) =

Luke Mitchell
Mati Colmer
Carrignne Peasgood
Rabacca Pamy
‘Denise Troughton

lan Webb

B loalolim|o o
o | s o] o o
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Curmculum & Standards Committaa

Thete ware seven members af the Currleulurm and Standards Cormmittes at any one fima during
2047/ E and thiz iz inclusive of the Studert Unlon President, HE Student Governor and one &o-
apted membar.

The Committas operates in accordance with written terms of reference spproved by tha
Carporation. Its purposs is o overses the curiculum and standards matters of the Collage,

Moatings attended in the 201 7/18 ware a5 follows:

Mamea Meetings Attanded Out of Possible '

Lauran Callaghan-Bates
Aron Whilas (co-opted)

Andrea Blanchflower = i &

| Matthew Colmer 2 i}

Jill Lanning {Chair} & &

Carrienna Peasgood & &
Luke Mitchell 5 B ]

Max Roberis 1 1

2 5

5 &

Internal Control

Scope of responsibiilty

The Corporation is ultimataly responsible for the Caollege's system of intermnal control and for
raviawing its effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminats
tha risk of fatllure to achieve business objactives, and can provide only raasonable and nat
shsplute assurance against material misstatemant or l8s,

The Comoration has delegated the day-io-day responsibliity to the Principal, as Accounting
Officer, for maintsining a sound system of internal contral that suppornts the achigvemanl of the
Crllege's policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and sssats for whizh
sha is personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibililies assigned to her in the
Financial Maemorandum betwean City College Morwich and the funding bodies. She is alsn
responsitle for reporting to the Corporation any material weaknessas of breakdowns in internal
contral,

The purposa of the system of Internal control

The system of intarnal control is designad to manage risk to & reasonable kevel rather than to
eliminate all risk of failura to achleve policies, sims and cbjectives; it can tharefara only provide
reazonable and not absalute assurance of effectivaness. The systern of intarnal control is based
an an cngoing process designed 1o identify and prioritiss the risks to the schisvemnent of college
palicias, alms and ohjgectives, to avaluate the likelihood of thosa risks being realised and lha
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effactively and economically. The
systam of intemal control has been in place In City College Morwich for the year ended 31 July
118 and up to the date of approval at the annual report and financial statements.

Capacify to handle risk

The Corparatien has reviewed the key risks 1o which the Collega is expozed together with the
operating, financial and compllance contrals that have been implemented ta miligate those risks.
The Corporation is of tha viaw Lhat there is a formal cngaing process for idantifying, avaluating
and managing the Callega's significant risks that has been in place for the pariod anding 37 July
2018 and up o the date of appraval of the annual repar and acceunts. This process 12 fog ularky
revigwead by the Corporation,

A
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The rigk and contral framework

The system af intarnal control is based on a framework of reguiar management infommation,
adminiatration procedures including the sagregation of duties, and = syslem of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it incledas:

» Comprehensive budgaling systems with an ennual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by
the Corporation

» Regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reparts which indicate
financial performance against forecasts

+ Setting targats to measure financial and other pedormance
= Ciearly dafinad capltal investment cantrol guidelines
= Tha adoption of farmal project managemant dizciplines, whers appropriate

The Callege has an intemnal sudit sarvica, which operates in sccardanca with the reguirements of
the ESFA's Post 16 Audit Code of Practica. The work of the intermal audit service is informed by
an analysis of the dsks to which the Cellags i exposed and annual internal audit plans are
hased on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the intemal audit plans sm sndorsed by the
Corporation on tha recommendation of the Audt Commitiee.

Asa mintrmum, the Hesd of Intemal Audit (HIA) annually provides the Corporation with a report
an internal audit activity in the Callage. The report includas the HIAs independent opinion on the
adequacy and effectivensss of tha College's system of risk managament, contrals and
Povarmance PrLCEE30s.

Feview of effactiveness

As Arcounting Officer, tha Principal has responsibility for reviawing the effectivensass of tha
system of intemal conirol, The Principal's review of the effectivanass ofthe system af intarnal
cantral is Infarmed by

e Tha wark of the internal auditors

«  Tha work of the executive managers within the College and NES who have respansibilily for the
davalopment and maintenance of tha intarnal control framewor

=  Commants made by the Callege’s financial statements suditors and the regularty auditors, in
thair management lefters and other raports,

The Principal has been advised an the implications of the result of the HIA's review of the
effectivaness of the system of internal contral by the Audit Committas which oversees the wark of
the internal auditor, and & plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvemsent of
the systam isin place,

The Principsl and sxacutive management team recelves reports setting out kay parformance and
fsk indicators and sansiders possible control issues brought to their atention by early warning
machanizms, which are ambeddad within the depardments and reinforced by risk awarenass
traiming. The Principal and executive management team and Audit and Risk Committaa alsa
recaive regular reports from intermal audit, which include recommendations for improvement. The
Audit and Risk Committes’s robe in this araa is confined to s high-lavel review of the
amangemants for internal confrol, The Corporation’s agenda inludes a ragular tem for
considerstion of risk and cortrol and receives reparts thereon from the execulive managemant
team and the Audit and Rigk Committee. The emphasis s on obtaining the relevant degree of
as=sUrance and nat mersly reparting by exception. At ts October 2018 mealing, the Corporation
carrled out the annusl sssassment for the year ended 31 July 2018 by considaring
documentation from the senior management team and intemal audit, feedback receivad from all
mermbers of the Corparation and taking sccount of events since 31 July 2017, The Corporatan
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Salf-fssessment feeds into the Cellages SAR consequently aupporting our Ofsted judgaments,

Easad on the adviee of the Awdit Committee and the Principal, the Corporstion is of tha opinion
that the College has an adeguate and effective framework far governance. risk mansgament and
conirol. and has fulfilled its statutory responsibility for “the effective and efficient use of résaurces.
the sobvency of the institution and the body and the safeguerding of their assets”

Thea Board has received the annual eport. has conductad its annual review of the effectiveness
of tha system af internal control, and has taken account of any changes needed to malntain the
effectivensss of the sk management and control proocass.

The Board confirme that thera ts an ongeing process far identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks facad by City College Norwich, This process has been in place throughoaut the
yaar under review, up fo the data of the annual report, snd is regularly reviewed by the Board.

Fraud

The Corparation has a zero-tolarance approach to fraud and action is taken to limit the risk af
fraud through the system of intemal cantral. A fraud policy and response plan is incorporated in
the risk managemsant framewark,

Bribery

The Comoration has a zero-teleranca spproach o bribeny and sctian is taken 1o limit the risk of
bribery through the system of intemal control with the maintenance and monitoring of & register
of gifts and hospitality recelved, The Collage underlakes regular reviews of the anti-brbery
measures ir places, ensuring that they remain adequale.

Going Concem

After making appropriata enquires, the Comporation considers that the College has adequate
rasaurces to continue in aperational axistence for the foresseable future. For this reason it
cantinues to adopt the going concem basls In preparing the financial statemernts.

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 11 December 2018, and signed
on its behalf by

P"-..W L{—""w'_f)

Andrew Bames
Chairman of the Corporation  Principal
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4. Govarning Body's statement on the College's regularity, propriety and compliance with
Funding body terms and conditions of funding

The Carporation has considersd its responslbility to notify the Education and Skifls Funding Agency
of material irragularity, Impropriety 8nd non-camplliance with terms and conditions of funding, under
the colleges’ grant funding agreement and contracis with ESFA, As pan of qur consideration we

have had dus regard 1o the requirements of the grant funding agreements and cantracls with ESFA,

wWa eonflrm on behalf of the Carporation, that after due enquing and ta the best of our knowledge, we
are able 1o Kentify any material imsgular or Improper use of funds by the College, or material non-
compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the College’s grant funding agreements
and cantract with ESFA,

We confimm that na instancas of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have
been discovered to date. If any instances are identifiad after the date of this statement, these will be
nctifled 1o the ESFA,

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation on 11 Dacember 2018, and signed on
its bahalf by:

RRagvg {ﬂf'i:?j,-(
Andrew Barnes 'l:nn'idnnu Fnat._gﬂnd
Chalrman of the Corporation Principal




Clty College Norwich
5. Statament of Respensibilities of the Members of the Corporatlen

The mernbers of the Corporation are reguired to present audited financial etatements for each
linanclal vear,

Within the terme and conditions of the College's Financial Memorandum with the EEFA, the
Carporation, through e Accounting Officer, is raquired to prapare financial statemants for éach
financial year in scoordanca with the 2015 Staternent of Recommended Practice — Accounting far
Further and Higher Educstion and with the College Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by the
ESFA, and which give & true and fair view of the state of affains of the College and the resuft far that
yaar.

In preparing the financiel statemants, the Corporation 18 required to:

« salact sultable accounting policies and apply them consistently

«  make judgements snd sslimates that are reasonable and prodant

+ state whether applicabile Accounting Standsrds hava been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and axplaingd in the financial slatemants

= @3sess the company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable.
matiers related ta going corcen; and

= sz the going concem basis of accaunting unless they either intend to liquidate the company
orto cease oparations, of have no realistic altemallve but to do so.

The Corporation is alsa required to prepare an Operating and Financlal Review Report which
dascribes what It is rying to do and haw it ls going about it, including information about the lagal and
administrative status of the College.

The Carporation is respansible for keeping adequale accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy, at any lime, the financial positien of the College, and which anable it to ensure
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant legiststion of
Incarporation and other relevant accounting standards: H is responslble for such intemal cantrod as it
determines ks neceasary fo enabls tha preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemaont. whether due to fraud or arror, and for taking staps that are reasonably open ta it in
arder lo safeguard the assets of tha Coellege and to prevent and detsct fraud and other irregulanlios.

The maintenance and Integrity of the College wabsile s the responsibility of the Corporation of the
College; the waork carrlad cul by the auditors doss not Involve considerstion of thase matters and,
accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have accurred to the
fnancial staternents sinca they were Inttially presentad on the website. Legisiation in the Unled
Kingdom gaverning the praparation and dissemination of financial statements may diffar from
lagislation I other junsdictions.

Wemhers of the Comporation are responsible lor onsuring that expenditure and Inceme are appliad
far the purpasas intanded by Parliament and that the financial transackons conform to the
authorities that govarn them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuning that funds from the ESFA
are uged only in Becordance with the Financial Memorandum with the ESFA and any other
conditions that may be prescribad from time to ime, Members of the Corporation must ensure that
them ara appropriaie financial 2nd management controls in place in order to aafequerd public and
other funds and to ensure they are used properly. In addition, mambers of the Corparation are
responsible for sacuring economical, efficient and effective mansgemanl of the College's resourcas
and expenditure, so that the benefits that should be derived from tha application of public funds fram
the ESFA are nat put at risk.



City Collage Norwich

Statemant of Responsibilities of the Membere of the Corporation (continued)

Approved by order of the members of the Corporation an 11 December 2018 and signed on itz
bahalf by:

A W.W

Andrew Barnes, Chalmman of the Corporation

&



&. Independent Auditor's report to the Corperation of City Collage Norwich

Opinlon

We have audited the financlal statements of City Coliege Marwich {"the College™) for the year ended
31 July 2018 which compriaa the Stataments of Comprehensive Incame. Batance Sheet, Statarmant
of Changes in Resenwas, Statement of Cazh Flows and relsted nates, including the accounting
palicies in nate 1.

In aur apinian the financlal 2tatements:

» give 3 true and fair view of the state of the College's aftairs as at 31 July 2018, and of tha
College's income and expendiure, gains and losses, changes in feserves, and cash flows, for the
vear then ended; and

»  have been propery prepared in scepmance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102
The Financial Reporting Standard spplicable in the UK and Republic of irefard, and with the 2015
Statarnent of Recommended Prectice — Accounting for Futher and Higher Education

Basis for opinion

We conductad our audit in accordance with Intarnational Standards en Auditing (LK) (1548 (UK)7)
and applicabie law. Our responsibilities are dascribad below, We have fulfilled our athical
responsibiiies undar, and ara Independent of the Callege in accordance with, LIK athical
requiremeants including the FRC Ethical Standard, We balieve that the audit evidenca we hava
obtained is & sufficiant and appropriate basig for our apinion.

Galng concemn

We are required ta repart to you il we have congluded that the use of the going concem basis of
accouniing ks insppropriate or thera is an undisclosed materizl uncarlainty that may cast mignificanl
daubt over the use of that basis for 2 period of at least twelve manths fram the date of approval of
tha financial statements. We have nothing 1o report in these respacis.

Other [nformation

The Comormatian is responsible for the othar information, which comprises the Operating and
Financial Review, tha Corparation's Statement of Carporate Governances and Internal Control, and
Key Management Persannel, Board of Governors, and Professional advisers. Cur-opinion on the
financial statements doss net cover the other information and. accordingly, wa do not axpress an
audil apinion or any form of essuranca conclusion thereon.

Qur raspansiblity is to read the ather infarmation and, in deing so, consider whether, basad on our
finmncial satements audit work, tha information thergin is matedally misstated or incensistant with
the financial stalemernts ar our audit knowledge. Based solely on that werk, we have not identified
material miastetarmants in the other infarmation.

Mattars an which we are required to report by exception

Under the Poat-16 Audit Code of Practice 2017 ta 2018 (March 2012) issued by the Education and
Skills Funding Agency wa are required to report to you il In our opinion:

« aEdequate accounting recards have not been kept by the College, or

= e College's financial statements are not in agreemant with the accounting recards: of

« we have not receivad all the Infommation and explanations we require for aur audil,

We have nothing to rapod in these respents.



Corparation's responsibilities

Ag explained more fully in thair stetemant gt out on page 23, the Corporation is respansible for the
praparalian of the financial statamants and for being satisfied thet thay give a true and fair visw,
such Internal control a5 it determines ie necessary to enable the praparation of financial statemants
thet are frae fraom material misstatement, whethar due 1o fraud or error; assacsing the Coliege’'s
ahility to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relsted o ooing concenm;
and using the gaing cancarn basis of accounting unlass it sither Intends to liquidate tha Colege or to
cease operafions, ar has no realistic atemative but to do so.

Auditor's respongibilities

Our ohjectives ara to obiain reasonable assurance abaut whather the financial statemenls as a
whole are free from materal misstatement. whether due to frasd or ermor, and to issus our apinkan in
an auditar's report. Reaspnabla assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that
an audit conducted in accardance with 1SAs (UK will always detect 8 materdal misstatement when it
axists. Misstatements can arige from fraud er error and are considered matedal I, Individually or in
anpregate, thay could reasonably be expectad to influence the economic decisions of users taken
an the hasis of tha financial statements.

A fuller descripfion of our regponsibiliies is provided an the FRC's website at
wanw frooong ukfsuditoreresponsibilitles.

Tha purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibiiities

This report is mads solaly ta the Corporation, in accordance with Adicle 22 of the College's Articlas of
Gavarnment. Our audit wark has besan undertaken so that we might £late to the Comporation those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditer's repart and tor e ather purpose. Ta the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do naot aceapt or assume respansibility 10 anyone other than the
College and tha Corporation for our audit work. for this report. or for the opinions we have fomed.

:_ -.I-i--'-’ o S, |

Stephanie Beavis

For and on hehalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Charterad Accounfants

Oragonfly House

2 Gildars Way

Morwich

NRI1UB
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City College Norwich

7. Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to the Corporation of City College Norwich
and the Secretary of State for Education acting through Education and Skills Funding

Agency

I accordance with the terms of cur engagemant latter dated 27 November 2017 and further to
the requiremeants of the funding agreement with Education and Skills Funding Agancy we have
camied out an engagemant Lo obtaln limited assurance about whether anything has come o our
attention that would suggeast that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and incamea
racaived by Cly College Norwich during the perod 1 August 2017 t9.31 July 2018 have not been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to
the authorities which govern tham.

The framawark that has been applied is sat aut in the Post-16 Audit Coda of Practice issued by
the Education and Skills Funding Agency. In fine with this framework, our work has spacifically not
considersd income receivad from the main funding grants generated through the Individualised
Learner Recard {ILR) ratums, for which the Educetion and Skills Funding Agency has ather
agsurance arangements in place.

This report |s made solely to the comaration of Cly College Norwich and the Education and Skills
Funding Agency In accordance with the tarms of our engagement letbar. Dur work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the corparation of Clty College Narwich and Education and
Skilla Funding Agency those matters we are raguirad to state In a repart and for no sther purpose.
To the fullest extant parmitted by law, we do not sccepl of assume responsibility to anyone other
than the corpamtion of City College Morwich and the Education and Skills Funding Agancy for our
work, for this repod, or for the conclusion we have fommed.

Respective responsibilities of City College Norwich and the reporting accountant

The corporation of City Callega Morwich is respensible, undar the regulrements of the Furthar &
Highar Education Act 1992, subsequant lagislation and related requlations and guidance, for
ensuring that expenditure dishursed and income received is appliad for the purposes intendad by
Pardismant and the financial ransactions confarm o the authoites which gavarmn them.

Jur responsibitities for this engagement are ta abtain limited assurance and raport in accordance
with cur engagement letter and the requirements of tha Post-16 Audit Cede of Practica. We report
lo you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying cut our work which suggasts that in
all matarlal respects, expenditure disbursed and income receivad during the period 1 August 2017
to 31 July 2018 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parllament or that the financlal
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govem them.

Approach

We conductad our engagement in accordanea with the Post-16 Audit Cede of Practice issued
jointly by the Skills Funding Agency and tha Education Funding Agency. We performed & limited
assurance engagemant as defined in that frameawork.

The abjective of & limited azsurance engagement is to parform such proceduras 35 10 obtain
information and explanations in ordar lo provide us with sufficien! appropriste evidence 1o axpross
g nagativa conclusion on regularity.

& limited assurance angagement iz mare limited In scope than s reasonable agsurance
engagement and consasquently doss not snable us to obtain assuranca that we would became
aware of all significant matlers that might be Wantified in a reazsonable assurance angagement.
Accordingly, we do not expross 8 positive opinian.

Our engagement includas axamination, on 3 test basis, of svidence relevant to tha reguiarty of
the coflage’s income and expenditure.

S



Clty College Morwich

The work undertakan o draw our conclusion includead:

Diocumenting tha framewark of authorities which govem the activities of the College,

Linderaking a risk gssessment based on our understending of the general control environment
and any weaknesses in intermnal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements,

Revlewing the self-assessment gusstlonhaire which supports the representations included in
the Chalr of Govemors and Accounting Officer's statement on ragularity, propriety and
compliance with the framework of authorities;

Testing tranasctions with relaled parties;

Canfirming thraugh enquiny and sampla testing that the Callege has complied with its
procuremant policies and that these palicias comply with delegated authorities; and

Feviewing any evidance al impropriety resulting from aur work and determining whalher it was
gignificant enough to be referrad to In our regularity report.

This list is not exhaustive and wa parformed addifional pmcadures designed to provide us with
sufficlent appropriste evidence to axpress 3 limited sssurance cancluslon on regularity consietent
with tha raquirements of the Post-18 Audit Code of Practice.

Conclusion

In the coursa of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in 8l material
respects the expanditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2007 to 31 Jduby
218 hes not basn applied to purposes intended by Padiament and tha financial transactions do nal
confom to tha authorities which govern thearm,

oy Tt g

Stephanie Beavis

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Reporting Accountant
Cragonfly House

2 Gildars Way

Morwich

NR3 1UB
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City College Norwlch

#. Statement of Comprehenzlve Income

INCOME

Funding body graris

Tullicr: fees and aducaton confrmcis
Mher grants and contracts

Crbver incorme

Invastmant inGormes

Fair value of nei assets of Paston SFC
Total Income

EXPEMDITURE

Steff costs

Festrushurng costs

CHher operating expenses
Dapreciation

Interest and olher fnance coats
Tokl Expanditure

Surpluai{defich) before other gaing and loszes
Loss an disposal of agaste

Surplus | {deficit) before tay
Tamation

Surplus | [defick) for the year
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of assets
Restrictad resarva expenditune

Actuaral gain § (lose) in respect ol panslons schemes

Achaarial moact of Paston staff transferming o MNES
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Represented by

Unrestricted comprehensive income
Restricted comprehensive incoma

The statement of comprehansive income (8 In reepect of continuing activifes.

MHotas

L' ) R S B

10
13
1

13

12

The notes on pages 54 w64 farm part of the financial statements.

Yaar ended Year ended
31 July 2018 31 Juby 2017
ER00 E00
28,316 27813
fi. 556 TTRS
134 121
2,221 1,815
5] 12
2,085 -
aras? a7 .64
Z3,084 27,303
B.&OC g3.221
1.404 1,664
B 527
30 562 ar w7
TES (73]
755 {73}
ThE (73)
(2) (1]
4,805 {1,853)
gk ] -
5777 (1,967
5779 {1,9686)
12} 1)
5777 {1,88T)




City College Norwich

0. Statement of Charges in Raserves

Balance at 1 August 2016

[Defiait) { Surplus ! from e
income and axpeanditure Beeaunt

CHheér comprehenaive incomea

Transfers batwsan revaluation
and income and expanditure:
FEEMES

Balance at 37 July 2017

Lurplus { (dafigit) freem the
income and expeandiure accouml
Cithier comprahensive ireome

Translers pebween revaluaticn
and incoime and expenditure
rEsarEs

Tetal compreheansive incoma
for the vear

Balance at 31 July 2018

The notes on pages 34 1o 84 form pant of the financial statements.

Ifcome and Restricted Revaluation
Expenditure resErye PESErE
Aaccauni
000 £000 EGD0
(10,115 108 T4
(73] : 5
{1.883) (1
105 {135)
11.771) [t (195}
(11,928) 107 T.r0a
ThS - .
5,024 (23 -
196 (196}
5475 2 C(teey
[5.851) ws 1513

Total

E004D

[2.143)

i
i 1.804)

1,967
(4,190}

&b
o022

o

1,667

3



Clty College Norwich

1. Balance sheet as at 31 July 2013

Wan-Current Acsste
Tangible liked anse1s
Inveatmanis
Penslons Asast

Gurrent asseks
Siocks

Trade and other raceiveblos
Cash-and cash equivalanis

Less: Creditors —amounts falling due within
one year

Met current assets
Total assets less current [labllHes

Less: Crediiors — emounis faling due after mang
than one year

Provisions

Defined benefit chligatkns
Cither provissans

Toisl nat assats
Featrcted Resarves

Unresiricted reserves

Income and expendiuse accourd
Revalustion rasar

Total reserves

Nobes

13
14
26

15
21

18

17

20
20

2018 2017
E£000 £000
28,516 2R.451
2 z
28,518 25,453
1,622 1.483
f.838 7,110
8,631 8603
{4,247 {5.235)
4,384 3,388
32,802 28821
(10.624) {a,02a)
{18.972) 119,930)
(3,639} {2,973
1.66T {4, 1104
108 107
(5,951 {11,928)
7.513 7.708
1,867 (4,140}

The financial slalemants an pages 30 to 64 were approved and suthanised 17 I3sue by the Corporadion on 11
Diecemibar 2048 and were signad on its behalf on that date by

Iﬂﬁ"'.\lg-“‘.-'“j—ﬂ‘?

Andrew Barnes
Chair

jenna

Accaunting Officar
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11 Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 July 2018

Cesh flow from operating activities

Syrplua) [deficit) for the yaar

Ad|ustment for non-cash items

Deprecialicon

Impsimmant of investmen

flrcreaseydacrasss i S0chs

{Increaserdacresss in debiols
Irireasefdecreass) in craditors dus within ang year
Imcreasefdaecreass) in creditore dus aftes one yaar
Increasafdecreass) in proVisons
Increassidecreaza) in resthclad reseres
Pensions costs lega confnbutions payabie

Fized assels and pension sdiustment Pasion SF0
Tanation

Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Invesiment incoma

Imerast payable

Taxation Paid

[Profit) | Loss on sale of fived assets

Met cash flow from operating activities

iCash fows from investing actlvitles
Eroceads from sele of fixpd assels
Dispnsal of roan-curment asse] investimenis
Inveslment Income

Withdrawal of depoaita

Maw deposits

Payments made 1o aoquire fized assels

Cash Aows fromn finanecing achivities

Interesl pad

Interaet slemand of finance lease rantal paymenls
Mew unsacurad loans

Repaymenta of amounts bomoeed

Capilal element of finarcs lease renial payments

{Decrease) | Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cach and cash equivaients st beginning of {he year

Cash and caeh equaalents at end of the year

The noies on pages 34 to 64 form part of bw financlal siEtements.

Notas

14
26

21

2018 2017
£000 000
755 (73
1,404 1,666
(198 251
[954) 200
1,836 {228
(A34) (85
{2} (13
1,522 a4
{3,335) -
i) 12y
54 g0
(11} -
721 2 624
1 .

5 12
[591) {ES0Y
(5T4] {838}
(B4] (o)
{2a4) (240}
{218 (550
{171} 1,756
7.110 5,354
6,530 7.110

HH



City College Norwich

1Z. Motes to the Accounts

1 Statement of accounting pollcles

The follawing accounting policies have been applied conslstently in dealing with tems which are
considered matedal in relaton 1o the financial skatemants.

Baszls of preparation

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the Staternant of Recommended
Practice; Accounting for Furthar and Higher Education 2015 (the 2015 FE HE S0RP), the Caliege
Aocounts Diractian for 2015 ta 2016 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - "The
Financial Reperting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102),
The College is a public bensfit antily and has therefore applied the relevant public benefd
requirements of FRS 102,

Tha praparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires Lhe use of certain
critical accounting estimates, It also requires managament fo exercise judgement in applying the
Collepe's accourting policles.

Baslz of accounting

The finanqial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cest convention as modified
by the use of pravious valuations 33 deemed cost at transilion for certain non-curment assels.

Controlling party

City College Norwich is exempt from praparing consolidated accounts under FRS 102 section 9.

Going concemn

The activities of the College, together with tha factors likely to affect its futurs development and
performance are set out in the Opersting and Financlkal Review, The fingncial poslton of the Collegs,
ita cashfiow, liquidity and bommowings are described in the Financial Statements and accompanying
natea,

The College has currently £2.1m of loans outstanding with bankers and £0.1m Salix koans, tha terms
of tha agreements are for up ta 10 years, The College's forecasts and financial projections indicate
that it will be able to operate within this existing facility and covenants for the foreseeable future.

Acoordingly the College has a reasonabla axpaciation that it has sdeguate resources to continua in

operational existence for the foreseeable futura, and for this reason will continua 1o adopt the going
concem basis in the praparation of ks Financial Slatemants.

M



Clty College Morwich
Haotes to the Accounts

Statament of accounting policies (cont'd)
Recognltion af income

Govarnmant revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and ather grants and are
acoountad for under the accrual model as permittad by FRS 102, Funding body recurrant grants are
measurad in lina with best estimates for the perod of what Is receivable and depend o the particular
income stream involved. Any under or over achisvemant for the Adult Skills Budget s adjusted for
and reflected in the laval of recurent grant recognised in tha income and expenditure actount. The
final grant income is normally determined with the sonalusion. of the year end reconcilistion process
with the funding bady following the year end, and the results of any funding auditz, 16-18 leamer-
responsive funding is net normally subject o reconciliation and is theraflore not subject fo cantract
adjusiments.

The recurrent grant frem HEFCE represents tha funding allocations sttributabla ta the current
financial year and is cradited direct to the Statement of Camprehensive Incoms.

Grants {Including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income whan the
Callege ks entitled to the income and performance related condiiong have been met. Income
racaived In advance of performancs related conditions being mat is recognised as deferrad income
within craditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met,

Governmant capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised In Income over
the expected usaful life of the assel. under the accrual method as permitted by FRS 102, Cther
capital grants mre racognised in income when the Colega is entitled to the funds subjoct o any
porformance related conditions being met

Incoma fram tuition fees is stated gross of any expenditure which s not a discount and is recagnisaed
irs tha pariod for which it is receivad.

All incoma from shart-term deposits is cradited o the Income and expenditure account In the perad
ifn wehich it iz sarnad on a roceivable basis.

Accounting for post-employmant banefiis

Post-employment benefits to employees of the Collage are principally pravided by the Teachers
Pension Schema (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS), These are defined
benefit plans, which ara axternally funded and contracted out of the State Second Pansion,

Tha TES I an urfunded schama. Cantributions ta the TPS ara calculated so a5 to spread Lhe cost of
pensions over employess’ working llvas with the College in such a way that the persian cost iz a
substantially level percentage of gument and future pensionabls payroll. The contributions era
determmined by qualified actuaries an the basis of valuations using a prospective benefit methad. The
TPS is a mutti-emnplayar scheme and the Collega is unable to identify its share of the underying
azzats and liabiliies of tha scheme on 8 consistent and reasonable basis. The TPES ig therefore
reated as a defined confribution plan and the contributions recognised as an expense In the income
statament in the pericds during which services are rendarad by employees.

Tha LGFS iz a funded schems. Tha assats of the LGPS are maasured using closing fair values.
LGPS lighilities are messured using tha projected unit credit mathod and discounted at the current
rata of raturn ora high quality corparata bond of equivalant term and currency to the lisbiliies. The
actuarial valuations are obtaimed at least onnlally and are updatad at each balance sheal date. The
amounts chamged to operating surplus ane the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions. benefit changes, settlements and curlailments,

o



City College Norwich
Haoteg to the Accounts

Statement of accounting policles (cont'd)

They are includad as parl of staff costs as incurnad. Net Interest on tha net defined benefit
lability'asset s alsa reccgnised in the Statemeant of Comprehensive Incames and comprises the
Interest cost on the definad benaflt obligation and intersst Income on the schema assels, cakoulated
by multlplvng the fair valus of the scheme assets at tha baginning of the peniod by the rate used to
discount the benefit abligations, The difference betwesn the interast income on the schema azsets
and tha sctual retum on the scheme sssots s recognised in othar recognised gaine and lnssas.

Actuarial gaing and losses are recognisad immediately in other recognised gains and losses,

Short term Employment benefils

Shaort term employment bensfits such as salaries and compansated absences (haliday pay) are
racagnised as an expense in tha yaar In which the employess render service to the College. Ay
unused bancfits are gooruad and measiured as the addilional amount the College sxpects 1o pav a5 &
result of tha unused entittemeant.

Enhanced Pensions

The actual cost of any enhanced angoing pension fo a former member of staff is paid by a college
annually. An estimate of the expacted future cost of any anhancement to the ongaing penslon of a
farmer member of staff is charged in full to the College's incoma in the year that the membar of staff
refires.

In subsequent yaars & change |s made o provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced
pension spreadshaat pravided by the funding bodias.

Fufther details of the pension schemes are given in nata 26,

Mon-current Assats - Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulatad deprecigtion and accumulated impairment
loesas. Cartaln tems of fixed sssale that had been revaluad to falrf value on or prior to the date of
tranadtion ta the 2015 FE HE SORP. are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued
amount at the date of that revaluation.

Land and buildings

Frashold bulldings are depreciated on a straight line basis over thelr expected useful lives as follows:

College Buildings — 50 years
College roof — 20 years
Refurbizshmeants — 25 years
Staff car park =15 years

Fraahold land |z not depreciatsd.

Freehold buildings are depreciated over Lhalr expected useful economlc life 1o the Collega of 30
years. The College has a policy of depraciating major adaptations to bulldings over the pefiad of their
useful economic life of between 28 snd 30 years.

Leazehold land and buildings are amoriised avar the period of the laasa.
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Motas to the Accounts

Statement of accounting policles (cont'd)

Where land and buildings are acquired with the axd af spacillc grants, they =re capitalised and
depreciated az above. The ralated grants are credited to 2 deferred income account within cradiiors.
and ara released to the income and expanditure account over the expectad useful economic life af
the related assel on a systematic basis consistant with the depreciation palicy. The defemed income
ig allooated hatwean creditors due within one year and those due after more than ane year.

A review for impeimment of a fixed ssset is camied aut if events or changes in circumatances Indicate
that the carmying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverabla.

Assats under construction

Aagets under construction are accounted for at cost. based on the value of architacts’ certificates and
other direct costs, incurred to 31 July 2018, They am not depreclated until they are brought Into use.

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets

Where significant expanditure ls incured on tangibls fixed assets after initial purchasa il is charged o
Income in the period it is incurred, unless it increasas the fulure benefits to the Callege, in which case
It is capitalized and depreciated on the relevant besis.

Equipmant

Equipment casting lass than £1,000 per individual itern (axcept for computer equipmart] is
recognised as expenditurs in the pericd of acquistion. All other equipment is capitalised al cost,

Capltalised equipment is depraciatad on a straight-line basis aver ils remaining useful ecanomic life
as follows:

*  Care 4 years

= minibus T yEars

« oomputar aquipment A to 7 yoars
*« fumiture, fitures and fitings 0 years

s lab ! kitchan sguipmant 10 years

s otheraguipment B Yoars

“Fallowing a revicw of IT asset lives we have changed {during 2017-18) the useful economic life of
desklop PCs from 5 vears to 7 yaars. This is a change in estimatien leehnlgue not & changs in
accounting policy and refiects tha bonger use of core 1T equipmant al the College.

Laased assets

Costs in respect of oparaling leases are charged on a stralght-ling basis over the lease term, Any
lzase premiums or incantives relating to leases signad after 1st August 2014 s spread over the
minimum lease term, The Collsgs has taken advantage of the transitional exemptions in FRS 102
and has retained the policy of spraading lease premiums and incantlves to the date of the first market
rant raview for leagses signed bafora 150 August 2014,

Leasing agraaments which transfer to the College substantially all the banefits and risks of ownership
of an asaet ara traaled as finance leases.

Azsets held under finance leasas are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset {or, if

a
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lowar, the present value of minimum lease payments) at tha incaptlon of the leaze, The
carrasponding lability to the lessor is included in the balance shaeet as a finance lease obligation.
Assets hald under finance leases are included in tangible fixed asests and depraciated and assessad
for impairment losses in the sama way as cwned agsets.

Statemeant of accounting policles (cont'd)

Minimum lease paymenis are apportionad betweon the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding ligbility. The finance chamas are allocated over the period of the lease in proportien 1o
the capitai element outstanding.

Investmants

Lizted investments hald a3 non-cumant assats and current asset investments, which may include
lizted Investments, are stated st fair valua, with movements recognised in Comprahensiva Incame

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cazh includes cash in hand, daposits ropayable on demand and overdrafis. Deposils are repayaie
on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid invastmants Ihat are readily converdiblbe fa known
amounts of cash with Inglgnficant risk of change in value. An invastment qualifies as a cash
equivalent when it has malurity of 3 months or less from tha date ol acquisition,

Financial liabilities and agquity

Financial liabilities and equity are classified sccording to the substance of the financial instrument's
contractusl obligations, rather than the finangial instrument's legal form.

All lnans, investments and shor arm deposits held by the Group era classified as basic financial
[nstruments in sccordance with FRS 102, These instruments ara initially recorded at the transaction
price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires thet hasic financial instruments
ara subsequently measured at amortised cost, however the Group has caleulated thal the difference
hatweaan the historeal cost and amortised cost basis is not materal and so these financial
instruments are statad on the balance sheet at historcal cost. Loans and investments thet ars
payahle or recaivabla within one year are not discounted.

Forelgn currency translation

Transactions denaminated In foreign curencias ana recerded uzing the rate of exchangs ruling at the
date af the transaction. Monetany asaets and liabilibes denomlnated in forsign curmrenacias are
translated at the ratss af exchange ruling at the end of the financial perdod with all resulting exchanga
differences being taken to incoma in the period in which they ariss.

Tazation

The College is considerad o pass the 1ests set out in Paragraph 1 Scheduls § Finance Aot 2010 and
tharefare it meets the definition of a charltable company for UK corparation lax purposes.
Aceordingly. the College is potentially axampt from taxation in respact of incorme or capital gains
racaived within categenes coverad by sections 478-488 of the Comporation Tax Act 2010 or Sectian
256 aof the Taxation of Chameable Gains Acl 1922, to the extent that such income or gains ane
applied exclusively 1o charitable purposes.

The College is partially exempt in raspact of Value Added Tax, sa fhat it can only recover arountd 2%

=
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of the VAT charged on its inputs, Imecpverable VAT an inputs is included in the caste of guch inputs
and added to tha cost of tangible fixed assets as sppropriate, whers the inputs thamselves arg
tangible fixad essats by nalura.

The College's subsidiary companies are subject to corparation tax and VAT in the same way &5 By
commarcial organisation,

Provisions and contingent liahilities

Provislons are recognised whan the Gollaoe has a present legal or canstructiva obligation as a result
of a past event. it iz probable that & transfer of economlc benefit will be requirad Lo settle the
nbligation and a reliable estimate oan ba made of the amount of the obligation.

Whera the effacl of the time value of monay is matarial, the amount expected to ba raguired to setle
the obligation is recognised at present value using a pra-tax digcount rate. The unwinding af the
discount is recognised as a finance cost in the statemant of comprehensive income in the pariod i
arises.

A contingent liability ariges from a past event that gives the College a pessible obligation whoss
existanca will only be cenfirmed by tha oecurrence or otherwise of uneartain fulure events not wholly
within tha cantrol of the College, Contingen! liakilites also arise in circurmstancas whare a provision
would atherwisa ba mada but either it iz not probablea that an outflow of resourcas will ba required or
the amount of tha obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised Inthe balance shaat but are discloged in the notas ta the
financial statements.

For furthar information on provisions sea note 20,
Agency arrengemants

Tha College acts as an agent in tha callection and payment of bursary and discretionary suppart
funds. Ralated payments received from the main funding bodies and subsaguent disbursements to
students ars excluded from the Income and Expenditure account snd are shown separately in nots
29 except for the 5% of the grant received which is avallable to the College to cover administration
costs relating to the grant (3% for the HE Leamer Suppor furds). The Collags smptoys 1.28 FTE
members of staff dadicated to the administration of Learner Suppart Fund applications and
payments.

Judgements In applying accounting policles and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In prepaning these financial statements, management hava made the following judgemants:

+ Determine whether leases eniered into by the Collegs aither a2 a lessor or a lesses are gperating
oi finance leases. Thase dacisions depend on an assassment of whether the risks and rewards of
ownirship have been tranaferred from the lessaor fo the lesses an a lease by lease basis,

» Datarmine whether thers are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. Factors
takean into consideration in reaching such @ decision includa the sconomic viahility and axpected
futura financial perfommance of the sssel and whers it iz 8 component of a larger cash-ganeraling
unit, the viahilily and expected future pedomiance of that unit.
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Statement of accounting policies [cont’d)

Othar key sounces of aslimalion uncertalnty

Tangible fixed assels

Tangibla fized aseots are depreclated over their uaaful lives taking inlo account residual values,
where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual velues ars assessad annually and
may vary depanding on & number of factors, |n re-agsesaing assat lves. faclors such as
lechnplogical innovation and mainlenance programmes sre taken into sccount. Residual value
agzessments oconsider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the assol and
projected disposal values.

Local Govarnmant Pension Scheme — directly emploved College slalf

The presart valus of the Lacal Government Penzion Scheme dafined banafil llabiity depends on &
number of factors that are datarmined on an actuarial basis using a variely of assumptions. The
assumptions used in datermining the net cost (Income) for pensions include the discownt rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which ars disclesed In note 26, will impact the camying amaunt of
the pension liability, Furthermora & rall forward approach which projects results from the latest full
acluaral valuation performed at 31 March 2013 has boon used by the actuany in valuing the
pensions kabdlity at 31 July 2018, Any differences betwsean the fligures derived from the roll foreard
appmach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carying amaunt of the pension
ligtility.

Local Government Pension Scheme — direchy emploped NES stalf feontracied auf suppart
EBViCE)

For further infarmation held on this provision ses note 26.

FProvwision fov frecoverahble debts

Al year end an annusl review is complatad for the recoverabllity of individusl debtor balances. Our
accaunting policy Is to provide for 100% of all non-stedant loan company debtor balances Lthal are
greatar than 12 months. For student losn company balancas greater than 12 months, we pravide
generally st 5% bul in addition where there are indicators of non-recoverability we will provide an an
individual basiz. For debtor balances due less than ane yaar, whera there are indicators of nan-
recoverability we will pravida on an Individual basis.
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2  Funding council grants

Recurmant gramts
Educadicon and 2kxlils Funding Aoency - sdukt
Education and Skills Funding Agency - 1E-18

Educalion and Sk#is Funding Agancy - apprenticaeships

Lizcal Authornity
Higher Educadion Funding Caungll

Specific Grants

Education and Skills Funding Agency
Releases of government cepital grants
HE grani

Total

3 Tuition fees and sducatien coentracts

Adul educadion Tees

Apprentizeship fees and condracis

Fees for FE loan supporied Sourses

HE Faas (including higher apprenficeahips)
Full cost provisgion

Total tuition foees

Edeation contracts

Total

d  Orther gramts and contracts

Other grants and econfraces

Total

Year ended Y oar ended
3 July 2018 31 Jduby 2017
£000 ExHi0
1,634 1525
21,065 20 5585
3454 2082
1,504 1038
&5 B29
474 335
ars A47
28316 27,813
Year andad Yeor ended
3 July 2048 3 July 2017
000 EQod
207 180
141 206
TaE 211
4. F149 5504
7S G
B.63Z T.ra2
23 4|
6 655 T, 783
Year ended Year ended
31 July 2048 31 July 2017
FO0D £000
134 121
i34 121
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G Diher incomee

Cataring and rasicences

Qkher inceeme generating activities
Mon governmant capital granis
Mispallaneous income

Tatal

& Investment income

Crihar imwastment incomo
Ciher mierest recsivabla

T Conations

Unrasiricted donatlons

Total

Year ended Year ended
31 July 2018 3 July 2017
] a1 ]

T7E /33

384 445

22 3

1,039 GG

2,221 1.815

¥aar ended Yesr anded
34 duly 2018 3 July 2017
£000 FOO0

- ]

g 11

B iz

Yaar ended Yesr andad
3 July 2018 31 July 2017
000 £000




City College Norwich
Motes to the Accounts

% Fair value of net agzets of Pagton SFC

Yodr ended
31 July 2018
EGO0

Fair valug of net aszets of Paston SFC

2,085

Year ended
31 July 2017
EQO0

O fhis 30t Newem ber 2017 Pasicn Sikth Foem College corperation dissclived and the statt assels and
lighilitis fransforred 1o Gity Gotene MNorwich, The net assats of Paston Sixth Form Cofiege at the point of

dissoluticn am showe Delow,

O Aranester the @staie of Pasion 2kdh Form College was independently valued by Smaolds Keys LLF. This

idantifiod an imcreases in the tangible fixed assets of £1,121 467,

Mat assets al poiet of transfer £O63k plus fair value adjustment on tha astate £1 122k totals & far value of net

ssseds of £2 0R5k

In the Statement of Cash Flows an adjustment s made for the fixed ssset reprasanting the net asset of
£2 THAK plus the fair valee adjustment of £1, 122K lesa a peneion lisbility of £543k. giving @ net adjusiment of

£3, 335k

Balance sheet as at 30 November 2017

Finad assats
Tangible Myed assets

Current assets

Trade and cther recelvables

Cash and c=sh equealants

Less: Greditors — amounts falling dug within one year
Wet cument assats

Toiel aeeats less current liabilides

Less: Credibars = afnounts falling due after mera than one
yEar

Provisions
Defined berefit chllgations

Total net assels
Unrestricted reserves

Ircome snd expendibuie agcoul
Reveluabon resorws

Total unrestricted reseryes

Feriod ended
30 November 2017
£000

2. TEE
2. 756

&7
1,101

1,168

1502)

SBG

3.2

(%838}

(543

963

283
T

Q83
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8 Fair valus of net assets of Paaton SFC (continued)

Falr value reconsiliiation

EQOD
Met book value of net assets of Paslon 863
SFC 2l point of dissolution
Fauir walue adjustment — fanaible fixed 1122
B ]
Fair value of Peston 5FC net agseta 2,085

a9 Stafl numbers and costs

The aversga numbsr of perzons {inctuding ey managemen? persannel} empéoyed by the College during the year,

dascrbed sk full-tma aquivalenis, wasa:

2018 2017
Mo, Mo,
Teaching s1aff 286 274
Man teaching Shafl =03 295
535 568

Staff costs for the above persons
Year anded Yoar ended
31 July 213 31 July 2017
£000 £000
Wages and sslanes® 16,912 15,854
Social security cosls 1,477 1.3681
Chher pension cosis A.948 3.185
Payroll $ub total 2,537 20,540
Cordrasted cul stafficg services 6,757 B, 763
28,084 27,303

Key menggement peracnnel

Fiay management parsonnel am those parsons having autherty and responsbility for planmng, ESrecling ang
cortroling the activifies of the College and are ropresanted by the College Leadership Team whick comprises the
Chief Exacutive Officer { Principal, Deputy and Assistant principads and Dircctors, Slall cosis includs compensation
paid to key meragamsnt personnel far loss of office.

2018 2017
Mo Mo,
The nurmbsr ot kay manesgement pereonnal including the Accounbing g B

Cfficer was:
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! Staff numbers and cosks {contlnued)

Emolumerts of Kay managament personnel. Accounting OHicer and alber higher pald staff

The number of key management parsornal and other staff who received annual emoluments. excluding pension
confributions and emplover's national insurance but includeng benafits in kind, in the fallewing Rages was,

Hey managament Dther staff
peracnnel
2018 2017 2018 2017
Mg Mo, Mo, Ho,
FEO, 001 ta £70C.000 4 i} = %
E20,001 to £50,000 1 | -
F130.007 o £140.000 i 1 = -
3] i] - -
Key managemeant personnel emeluments. are made up es follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 July 31 Julby
2018 2017
£000 E000
Zalanes 452 434
Banafits in kind ___1_ 1
453 435
Pension conlribuilons T 64
Total emdlurments 24 488
The above emoluments include amounts payable to the Accounting
Officer (who is also the highest pald officer) of:
Yaar erded Year ended
31 July 31 July
2018 2017
£000 E000
Zalaries 138 134
Banefits in kind 5
138 134
Pansicn conbribulicons Eil 22
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10  Other operating sXpeEnses

Teacning costs
Mon 1eaching coate
Framises costs

Total

Cther operating expenses include:

Auditars’ remunaraiion;
Finarcal statemeants audit
Intermmal! sudit

Crher services providesd by the financial statements audisara
Crbvesr sesvices pravided by the intemsl sudifcrs

Loesss on disposal of tangible fwed assels Pahisie no
matsrial}

Hire of assels under operating legsgs

11 Interest payable - Group and Collaga

O bank loans, overdralls and gther loana:

Pension finanua cosls (ol #6)
FPansicn finance costs (MES]

Total

12 Taxafion

Yeoar ended Year andad
21 July 2018 21 Jduly 2017
E00d £000

2.354 2,058

4,064 4,850

2,077 2213

8,500 8221

Year ended Year anded
3 July 2018 3 Juldy 2017
000 EQO0

A3 26

12 i2

a5 448

Year ended Year anded
I July 2018 31 July 2017
EOD0 £000

ad LT

a4 o]

60 497

20 20

G54 2T

The membars do nel believe the Callege was fisbie for any corporation tax arsing out of its activilies during this

perind,
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13 Tanhgible flved agsets

Land end buildings Eguipmant Total
Freshald Leng
Isasehold
£00g 000 £000 E00
Gost or valuation
Al T Aligust 2017 41,184 2458 14,00 56,703
Additions 3.811 - a5E i, 469
Disposals - (2,488 1.034) (3,522}
A 31 July M8 44,077 0 13,573 57,650
Depreciation
At Aoguaet 2017 {16.818] [2.314) (12.020) (31.252)
Charge Tor the year ET1) [174) (550 (1,404)
Eliminatian in reepeat of disposals - 2488 1,054 3522
At 31 July 2018 {17 . 568) - [11,545) [29,134)
Met book value at 31 July 2048 26,458 0 2028 28,516
Mel book walue 5t 31 July 2017 23,248 174 2.029 #5450

lpawich Road, Norwich
Inherited land and buildings were valued in 1923 by Tim Matthews Associates (@ irm of independant
charierad surveyors), the value of e larsd only elemant baing £4.583,749.

her tangible fued asssts inherited from the LEA at incorporation have beasn valugd by the Carparation at
depraciated replacement cost. f land and buildings had not been revaluad they would have been included at 8
cost of Enil.

Land and buildings with a ned book value of £7,513,077 (2017 - £7.708.541) have been financed by
exchequer funda, Should these assots be sold, the College may be liabls, under the lerms of the Financial
pemarandium with the Chisf Executive of Skils Funding, to sumender the procecds,

Paston, Morth Walsham

Fallowing 1 merger with Paston Sixth Form Callege on the 1 Decamber 2017 {zee note 8) the fallowing
tangible fixed assels wers fransferred:

Lawns site - Freshoid forthe Lawns site with nai book value of £2. 708 000 transfacted as at 1 Decermber
2017, On bansfer the Lawns site wae independently witued by Arnolde Keys LLP. This identified an increass
{upwards fair value adjustmant] of £1,121,000 to the Lawns freehold (ravisad batal fair value of £3.830,0C4).
The net baok value on tranefer was fundad by defersed ESFA capital grants of £1.877 625,

Equipmen! = equipment with a nat book value of £47, 000 tranaferred as at 1 December 2017 Mo fair value
adjustment was required for this eguipment

17
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13 Tangiole fived agsets (continued)

Lariffons slte - In additan B the transfer of the freshold 1o the Lawne site a leese was signed an 1 Decasnbesf
27 betwean The Cficlal Custadian for Chariies on Bahalf of the Paeton Foundation { Lardlord)] and Nomaich
City College of Further & Higher Education {Tanant] in ralation fo the Griffon Campus, Morth Walsham, The
erm of e lease s 20 vears from 1 Decernber 200 7T (with the first bresk point ai 10years] and 5 basded an &
peppercorn renfal. Permilied use of the premises i a3 a college of general further educaiion, identified as
Paston College, wilh the main purpase and significant majonty of provision for 16-12 year old full time
sfudants”, The title ta the kand |5 vested in The Official Cuslodian for Charitses on Behalf of the Paston
Foundation [Landkard ), Basad an e shorl term naiure of the lease, the permitted uss, and that the frechoid is
resgined by the landiond, (he Griffons site i3 not accounted for in the books of City Collaga Morwich

The Griffors sie was valved at depreciated replacement coat by Arncéde Haye LLP at £2.025,5871 25 al 1
Decamber 20107,

14 Mon current Investmenls

Yoar ended Year ended

31 July 2018 31 July 2017

EDOD £000

investmant - Ciher 2 Z
Takl 4 2

The Caollege gwns 519% of the £1 ordinary ehare captal of Morfolk Ecucational Servicea Limited, 8 company
incorporated in England and Wales. Norfolk Educstional Services Limited was established to provide shared
carvicas to the TEM Group.

15  Trade and other recelyables

Year endad Year ended
31 Juby 204E 2 July 2017
EQD0 E000
Amounts falllng due within one year

Trede receivables 307 BEG

Amounks owed by graup undsrtakings:
Subsidiany undertakings a 12
Aszaocisted undartakings = =
Prepayments and aporued incoms 744 G612
Amaounis cwed by the ESFA L3 A0
Citner Dabiors 2 )
Total 1,682 1,403
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16 Creditora: amounts felling dues within one year

Bark loans and cwerdrafis

Salw loan

Trade payables

Armounts ewe 1o group uncertakings:
Subsidiary undsrtakings

Corporation Tan

rteer faxation and accial sscanty

Arcnuale and deferred incames

Daferrad income - government capltal grants

Deferred incorne - gowernmant révenue grants

Amounts owad fo the ESFA

Dt Gredilors

Total

17 Creditors: amounta felling dua after cnie year

Berk luans

Sal loan

Obligaticrrunder finance heases

Dsforred income - gavemment capital grants

Total

Year ended Year ended
3 July 218 31 Judy 2097
EQ0G EQ00
180 174
&0 (5 [H]
L Fan
43 4
SEd 3ar
1,385 2,213
292 424
Fi3 Ea7
409 RBE
4,247 5,235
Year ended oar gnded
3 July 2018 31 July 2017
F O E (00
1,902 Z.0R2
&0 120
& eal G828
10624 A.028

Ed

at
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18 Maturity of debd

{a) Bank loans and overdrafts

Bank loans and cvesdrafis sre repayable as follows:

In cme year or less
Batwasn ane and bweo years
Bedwean twg and flve vears
Im five wears or morg

Total

Year ended Year anded
31 July 2018 31 July 2017
E000 £000

180 174

1&7 180

1.715 haz

1,320

2 082 2,256

The uneacurad EIB loan was infially for £2,850 000 with 58 quarterly rapayments over 14.5 years. The loan was
trken cut to fund the new roof and wingaows in fhe Moswich building. The Collage cortinues o meet 3 inan

covienant I'EqIJiI'Ell'ﬂ BM1E,

Interest will he cakculatad on the balance of the loan for sach applicabée interest perod at the aggregate rale of

5.862%, and capital repayments commensed from Seplember 2013,

(b} ‘Ealix loans

Tha Salix luan is interest free and repayable ovar 4 years with biznnual repayments

In ane year or leas
Betwean one and two years
Batwaan e and five years
[ e Yesmrs or mions

Total

19 Rastricted Reserves

A1 August
Expendiiure

A 271 July

Year ended Year ended
a1 July 2018 31 July 2047
£000 EQ(D

il £

an &l

3 Lol

120 180

2018 2017

Total Tatal

£000 E00D0

107 108

4] 413

105 107

The funds represant donalions far prize funds; and the movement in the year represents amounts used for prizes
awarded and spacific earmarked schemes relating fo carein building wesk which are being relesssd over he

uzefu! life of the asset=.
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20 Provialons

Af T August 2017

Expandilure in the penad

Transferred from income and
expendiure sococount

At 31 July 2018

Defined
benefit
Chllgations

£000
12,830

i1.411)
(1,547}

16072

HES
Pension

£000

1.80%

1825

Enhanced Other
pansions

000 Eoon

1,565 a03

(147} -

He (303

1,814 =

Tatal

£000

23,803

{1,558
01,734

C 20811

Defined banefit obligatians relate to the lisbilities under the College's membership of the Locel Government
pension Scheme, Furher detaills are given in Mobte 26,

Far further information relating to the NES provision s nole 26.

The enhanced pansion provision relales 1o the cost of staff who have already left the College's employment and
cornrnitments for recrganisafion costs from whick the College carmit ressonably withdraw al the balance shest

date. Thiz provizion hae bean recalculated 7 accardance with auidance issued by the funding bodies,

The principal assumptions for this calculation ane:

Frice inflation
Discournt rate

21 Cash and cash egulvalents

Cag and cash eguivalants
Owerdrafts

Totel

At T August Cash
2017 flonwrs,
Ef0 £000
7.110 1171
7,110 (171)

2018 2017
1.30% 1 30%,
2.30% 2.30%
Othar At 31 July

changes 2018
£000 E00D

- 6,930

- 6,838
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22 Capital commiimenta

Commirments contractad for al 31 July

23 Lease Obligations

At 31 July, the Solkege bad minimdim ease payments under non-carcelluble coeraiing wases as followe:

Futurs minimum lease payments due

Land and bulldings

Mot |ater than ong el

Lates thar one year and not later than five years
later thamn five ye&rs

Ciheor

kit later tham cng yaar

Latar than oo year ard nat atar than five years
laber han Tive vears

Total lease payments due

24 Contingant liabilities

2048
£000

2017

75

LGroup and College

2018 2017
£000 £000
206 1va
831 an
744 hea
1,878 2057
i GE

T3 108
165 187
2,043 2244

Trie College hes a contingent Rability In respest of fulure variation o the NES pension asest | liability. See nole

28 for furthar information.

Thens wara no other contingent liabilities at 31st July 20768 (2077 ENIl)

25 Ewvents gfter the reparting perlod

There are no avents afler the reporling period
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28 Degfined benefit obligations

The Colege's employees balong to two principal post-employmant bensfit plans: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Walas {TP3) for academic and related stafl: and the Local Governmeni Pengian Scheme (LGPS)
far non-teaching staff, which is managed by Norfolk County Council. Bath am mulli-employer defined-banafit

plans,

The pensivn cosls are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent quslified actuaries. The |ales!

formal actuarizl valuation of the TRS was 31 March 2012 ared af the LGRS 31 March 2016,

Total penslan cost for the year 2018 2017
E000 e00g

Teackers Pension Schema: contributions paid 1,478 1.370

Local Governmant Pension Schems:

Corlributions pald 1.411 1,278

FRS 102 (28} charpa DES a7y

Charge to the Statament of Comprohensive Income 2374 1,755

LGPS revision in year

Enhanced pension charge 1o Slatement of Comprehisnsie

Income Og &l

Total Pansion Cost for Year within staff costs 3,848 3,185

Contributions amounting 1o £347k (2017 £511K) wera payable to tho scheme ard ane included in creditars,

Local Government Penglan Scheme

The LGPS thal the Group participates in is a furded defined beneft pansion scheme adminigtered by Morfoll

Couniy Council

On 31 August 2012 an agreesment was signed bedween Narfolk Courty Councal, Morfolk Ecucatonal Senvicas
Limited (NES] and Sy College Nanwich (CGN} { LGPS Poaling Agreement and Guaraniee’) with respect to tha
lagal responsibilifies for the pensian lisbilities for non-leaching staff employed by NES including thoes
transfarring (urdes TUPE) frorm CCM and other group academies into NES.

©n 1 Saptember 2012 145 s1aff transfarred uncer TUPE from CON into NES [ard NES also recevved 32 etaff

from City Acadamy Morwich and Waytand Acadamy Norlolk, therefors total of 130 staff),

With effact from 1 Oclobor 2017, the 10 members of NES stall who are basad a1 City Academy Norsich were
TLFE transfared back o Gily Academy Norwich, The MNortolk Penslon Fund has been advised of tis franstfer
and the aciuarial impact o the LEPE lizbilities will be accounted for in the 2017-18 NES financial statements
aloing with the relezes of liabilities 1o MES in regard of thoese slaff

Alse, with effect from 1 December 204 7, 25 administrative and suppon staff from Paston Sixh Form Coliege
TUPE traneferrad inte NES fofowing the mergar between City College Norwsch and Paston Sixth Form College
{faliowing tha recommendation ansing from the Area Review pracess). The Norfolk Pensicn Fund has baen
advizad of this transier and the achuanal impact on the LGPS labities sccounted for in the financial
stataments.



City College Norwich
Notes to the Accounts
26 Defined benefit obligations (cont’'d)

Tha LGPS Pooling Agreement and Guarantee statas that CON guarantaes to meet the pansion
ohligations and liabililies of relevant staff employed by NES. The Paaling Agraament also means that
for the purpose of NES' participation in the Fund, Norfolk Caunty Council will also apply the same
emplover contriution rate as that of CON. Separately, the Service Agreements between NES and
the member bodies alse states thet on exittemination, CEN and the Academias hava o pay any
azsociated pension chames.

# A MES penzion provision of £1, 760k

« The arigingl pension lishility of £1,765k is being unwound in the snnual accounis (since 20°5-16)
in recognition that the orginal liability was a discounted figure, the impact of the unwinding of the
digcount is @ pensicn interest cost of £20,000 in year {accumulative 6,000}

*Further variatlons In the llability post transfer 2.0, sctuanial loss or service costs greater than
employer confribuliens, have been accounted for within NES. At paint of exlt from the shared service
arrangemant, tha agraamant requires a full actuarial calculation af ihe LGPS debt for the exiting
party. At this paint the mspactive share of actuarial loss and service costs would be Included in the
full valuation of the exit debd.

In addition to the NES armangemant sat out above the College alse continues ta smploy staff with
angalng membership to the LGPS. This is accounted for using FR3102 and the amounts and
disclosuras are shown in the note,

Teachers' Penslon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, definad benafil scheme, governed
by tha Teachers' Pensions Regulations 20410, and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachars’ Pension
Sohame Regulations 2044, These requiations apply Lo leachers in schools and othar educalicnal
establishmants, including academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local autharilias.
In addition. taachars in many Independant and voluntery-aidad sehools and teachers and lecturers in
aome establishments of further and higher education may be aligible for membership, Membership s
automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers and, from 1 Janwary 2007, autematic too for teachers
and lecturers in par-time smployment followdng appointment ar a change of centract. Teachers and
lacturers are able to opt out of the TPE.

The Teachers' Penglon Budgeting and Valuation Account

Although teachers and lecturars are smployed by vaious bodies, thair retiremant and other pension
benefits, Including annual incresses payable under the Pensions (Increase) Acls are, as provided for
in the Superannuation Act 1872, paid cut of monles provided by Parliament. Under the unfunded
TPS, taachars' contributions on 8 'pay-se-you-go' basis, and employers' contributions, are credited to
the Excheguer under amangements governad by the above Act, Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.



City College Norwlch
Motes to the Accounts

26 Defined benefit obligations (cont'd)

The Teachers' Pengions Regulations 2010 require an annual accourt, tha Taachars’ Panskon
Budgeting and Valuation Account, to ba kepl of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of
pensions’ increases). From 1 April 2001, the Aceount has besn credited with 2 real rate of retumn
which s equivalent to assuming that the balance in tha Account |2 invested in nobonal investments
that praduca that real rate of retum.

Valuation of the Teachars' Penslon Scheme
The latest actuaral review of tha TPS was carled out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with
The Public Semvice Pensipns {Valuations and Emplover Cost Cap) Directions 2014, The valuation
repart was published by the Deparment far Education {the Department) on 9 Jung 2014, Tha kay
resulls of the valuation are;

emplover contribution rates were set at 16.48% of pansionable pay;

tetal sehama labilties for 2endice 1o the effective date of £181.5 billion, and notional assats of

£176.6 hillian, giving a2 notional past service defict of £14.8 billion;

an emplover cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay.

the assumed real rate of retum f2 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in axcess of eamings. The
rate of real earnings growth is sesurmed te be 2.75%, The assumed nominal rate of raturn is 5.068%,
The new employer contribution rete far tha TPS was implemented in Septembar 2015.. The next
valuatlon of the TPS is currently undensay based on April 2016 data, whersupon tha smployor
conlribution rate i expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2015,
A full copy of the valuation report and supparting documentation can be found on the Teacheds'
Pension Schemea webslte at the following location:

Scheme Chanpges

Following the Huttan raport in March 2011 and the subsaguent consultaticns with trade unions and
other representative badias an reform of the TPS, the Departmant published a Proposed Final
Agreement, setting out the dasign for a reformed TPS to be implameanted from 1 April 201 5.

The key provisions of the reformed scheme include; 8 pensian based on career average eRmINGgSs; an
acorual rate of 1/57th; and a Normal Penzion Age equal to State Pension Age, but with ophions o
enable members to retire aarlier or later than their Momal Pension Age. Impodantly, pension benefits
bl ups Before 1 April 2015 will be fully pratactad.

In eddition, the Proposed Final Agreement includss 3 Gavernment commitment that thase within 10
yaars of Mormal Penslon Age on 1 April 2012 will sae no change to the age st which they can ratlne,
and no decrease in tha amount of pension they receiva whan they retire. There will alsa be furthcr
transitional pratectian, tapered over & three and a hall ysar pericd, for people whao would fall up 1o
three and a half years oulside of the 10 year profection.

Ragulations giving effect to a refermed Teachers’ Pension Schema came inte force on 1 April 2014
and the raformed scheme commenced on 1 Aprll 2015,

The pension costs pald to TPS in the year amountad to £1.478,000 (2017: £1,370.000)



ity College Norwich
Motes 1o the Accounts
26 Dafinad beneflt obligations (cont'd)

FRS 102 [28)
Under the definttions st out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS iz a multi-emplayer pansian schema. The
College is unahle to identify its share of tha undardying assets and liahilties of the achame.

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has acoounted far its
contribulions o the scheme a2 i it were & defined-cantribution plan. The College has set cut above
the information available on the plan and the implications for the Collaga in lerms of the anticipated
contribution rates.

Local Governmant Penslon Scheme

The LGPS is a funded dafinad-banefit plan, with the assets hald in separata funds administerad by
Merfolk County Council. Tha tetal centribution made for the yesr ended 31 July 2018 was
E1.771.000, of which employar's contributions totalled £1,4 11,000 and employees’ contributions
totalled £360,000. The agreed contribution rates for future vears are 18.8% for employers and range
frarm 5.5% to 7.5% for employees, depanding on salary. A deficit payment for fulurs years has been
agread for 2018-19 this will be £264k

On 26 October, the High Court handed down a Judgment invelving the Lloyds Banking Group's
defined baneflt penslon schemes, The judgmant concluded the schemes should be amanded o
enualisa pension benefits for men and women in relation o guaranteed minimum pansion benefits.
“GMP". Tha Govarnment will need to consider this outcome in conjunction with the Governmant's
recent consultation on GMP Indexation in public sactar schames before concluding on any changes
required to LGPS schemes.

s



Clity Collage Norwich

MNotes to the Accounts

Princlpal Actuerial Assumptions

Tha following informaticn is based upon a8 full sctuarial veloastion of the fund at 31 March 2017 updated to 37 July

2018 by & gualified ndependent Soiuary

At A1 July

2018

Rate of increase in salaries 2.70%
Future pensions increasss 2.40%
Discount rate for scheme abilltles 2.80%
Infladice assim phon { SR 2.40%

Commutation of pensions o lumg: sums

At 31 July
2047

2.50%
2.50%
2.70%
2.50%

An allowance 15 included for futura ratiraments Lo lect to take 50% of the massmum addilicnal lax-free cash up
te HMREL Himlts for pre-Apeil 2008 service and T5% of the maximum tax fras cash for posl-Agprl 2008 service

The cufrant martality assumpbions include sufficlent allowance for future impravements in martality rates. The

assurmed e exnectations on retinement age 85 ae:

At 31 Juby
2018
YEArs

Retinng taday
Males 22.40
Femplas 24 40

{Hetiring In 20 years
faiss 2410
Femaks 7640

At 31 July
2047

Yyears
22,10
24 40

24.10
2640

ar
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Motes to the Accounts

Lecal Government Fenglon Scheme {cant'd}

Thie College's share of the asseta in the plan and theexpactad rales af relum were:

Longg-term Fair Value st Long-term
rate of return 31 July 2018 rete of
expactad at reburn
21 duly 2018 axpectad at
3 July 2017
E000
Equities 2.8% 25,415 2T
Bonds 2.8, 16,128 2.7
Propariy 2.8% 5,065 2T
Zash 2.8% 1,456 2T%
Total fair valus of plan 48873
asEaLE
Walght=d average expectad )
[ bermn rate of return 2.80% 2.70%
fetual return on plan 4150

agaeta

Falr Value at
21 July 2047

26,2350
10,577

4,654
6

42,307

1,672

The amount Included in the balance sheet In respect of the defined bensefit penslon plan and

enhanced pensions benefits is as follows:

2018 2047
£000 EQCD
Fas value of plan essats 43,875 42,307
Presant value of plan liabifilas (58, 741) 1B2.124)
Presenl value of unfunded lisbilities 1106 (111]
Net pensions [lability)/asset (Hote 20) T [1E.8TD) (19,930)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incorme In respect of the plan are as

Followa:
2018 2047
EDOO E000
Amounta included in staff costs
Curmant sordice cosl 2,350 1,756
Fast service cost 1d
Total 2374 1,755

hH



City College Morwich

Notes 1o the Accounts

Local Govarnment Pension Schame (cant'd)

Amounis included in investmaent incomas or Interest payable

Mt irderest ivcome | (MNel pensian finanee coset)

Amounts recognized In Other Comprehensive Incoms

Reaturnon pension plan-assels

Experence losses arising on defined banafit obligation:s

Changss in assumpbons underlying the present value of pian ligbilitias
Actaral impact of Paston staff fransferning to NES

Amounl recognised n Other Comprehensive Income

Mowvement in net defined bensfit (liabllityiazaet during the year

i Ceefieit] in schame at 1 August

Blcnncamant in ypear
Current sandioe cosl
Etrployver confributicns
Contribution in repect of unfurkded benefits
Fasl service cost
Met interest an the defined {liakdlity Vassel
Effect of business combirabion ard dispoast
Actuarial gain o lass

KMat definad benefit (Hablilty] st 31 July

2018 2017
E000 E£000
(80 (417}
(560 {417)
1,845 7o
(3 463
2,963 {3.057)
119 -
5024 {1,893
2018 2017
EQOD E00D
(19,830} (17.143)
(2. 360 {1,755)
1,402 1,268
g g
(4] =
1660 (417
[424) -
4,805 (1,893
—__ (bgTa)  _(18.830)



City College Norwich

Motes to the Accounts

Local Government Penglon Scheme {cont'd)

Asaet and Liabliky Reconciliation

Changes in the present value of dafined benafit obligations

Defined bensfit ohligations at start of perlod
Gurrenl Senics ooa

Inferest cost

Contribudions by Schome paricipants
Experance gains and lossss on defimad banefii abligations
Changes in fimancial assumptions

Estim ated unlunded benefits paid

Estimated benefits paid

Faat Servics oost

Curtgilmanis and setl=ments

Effect of husiness combinalion and dispasals

Defined benefit obligatlons st end of period

Changes in fair valug of plan asgets

Falr value of plan aassts at start of periad
Interest on plan sssals

Ratum on plan 2ssels

Ermployer canfributions

Effact of business combination and disposals
Contributions by Scheme participants
Coriributice In rezpect of unfundad borelils
Estimated unfunded banedils paid

Estimated berefits paid

Falr valus of plan assets

2018

g 237
2,360
1,785

AE0

3

12, 863)
{9
(1,283
14

Jard

65 847

&2 0¥
1,205
1.845
1,402
2540

A0
5]

(%)

11,493}

48,875

2017
£000

E7 480
1,755
1,388

351
(4863}
3,067
%)
(4,222)

T ELE

40,337
3
T

1263

251

8}
(1,222}

42 307

The net effect of the business cambinalan entries shown sbove; asset moverent of £3,373k and labililies

mavernent af £2. 848k, totais £424K

The E424k lass the transfarred cpening balance of £543k repressnts the net movement in pengicn liabilites

accourted for i WES far those staff transferring employment to NES.
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Clty Collage Norwich
MNotes to the Accounts

28 GContralling Party

The College is within e Transformirg Edusation in Norok Charltable Growp, The TEN Charity is | private
company imibad by guarantce and 2 registersd charity, number 1148733, A magrty of the College Govemors

are TEN nominess,

Copies of the Transforming Education in Morfolk consclidsted accounts can be obdained lrom the Gompany

Secratary oo City College Morsich, |pewich Foad, Norfolk, ME2 21,

#  Amounis disbursed to students

Learnor support lundsz

Balanse hrought foneanc

Funding bedy grants — 18-18 bursary suppart

Funding biody grants — Adult bursary support

Funding bedy granis — Advanced larner [Gans DUrsan SUpsoor
Cther Fundireg body granis ™

Disburasd to atudsnts

Sodministration cosls

Amaunlconsolidated In financial statemeants
Smaunt returned to funding body

Balarce unspent s af 31 July, incleded in creditors

2018

201

a7
)
(40}

17T
£000

182

1ad

185
183

1,100

(311
()
(5}
(BT

20

Funding body grants are avallalile solely for students. In the majority of inslances, the College only acts 8= 8
paying agent (agency basis for 1619 and advanced leamer loans bursaries). I these circumstances, the grants
and related disburserments are therefore excluded from the Statemant of Comprshensive Income.

* Other Funding body grants moludes 8 transfer of the free school meals 201617 balanca.

fid



